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Seychelles Pension Fund

1.1 | FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIRMAN

“I would use my knowledge and experience to the maximum

On behalf of the Board of Trustees of the Seychelles
Pension Fund (SPF), | am pleased to introduce the
Annual Report of SPF for the year 2018 in accordance
with article 55 of the SPF Act, 2005.

This report has been produced to provide our dear
members - the Seychellois workers, our stakeholders
and other interested parties with an overview of the
activities and performance of the Seychelles Pension
Fund for the financial year 2018. It also provides an
insight into how SPF is managed for the benefit of
the Seychellois workers.

Today, it is more apparent than before, the hard
work that the staff and management of SPF does
with meticulous care, in handling its financial and
operational affairs, and prudency in its investment
decisions, all to ensure the long term sustainability
of SPF.

One of the strategies adopted by SPF, throughout
2018, was to increase voluntary contribution and
maintain the educational activities at various public
and private sector workplaces. This has resulted in
an increase in contribution levels for both mandatory
and voluntary contributions for the year, which has
helped immensely towards the increased pension
payments as members become more aware of their
entitlements.

to ensure that the Seychelles Pension Fund
continues on the path of modernization and
financial and operational sustainability.”

The introduction of a new rate of contribution for
employees from 2% to 3% and for employers from 2%
to 2.5% during the year, also helped with increased
collections in 2018.

A series of amendments to the SPF Act, aimed firstly
at better responding to the needs of its members
and secondly to equip SPF with the tools necessary
to guarantee its long term sustainability, were also
endorsed at the end of the year by the National
Assembly.

A continuing challenge facing SPF is the need
to seek higher returns to sustain its pension
commitments and the need for prudence to preserve
its funds. SPF continues to focus on responsible
investment and | am proud to say that once again
SPF has engaged positively on all its investments
in the year. Whilst no new properties have been
procured, as our investment strategy from 2017 has
been to reduce investments in real estate, we have
focused more on equities and fixed income through
financial instruments, as a means of investment
diversification.

2018 also saw the revision of several policies of
SPF, which included the members interest policy,
valuation of assets policy, valuation of unlisted
equities policy, valuation of properties as well as
bad debts Policy amongst others.

Chapter 1| 1.1 | Foreword from the Chairman | Page 6



Throughout the year, SPF officers have represented
the Fund at various conferences and have participated
in the AGMs of Afreximbank and TDB, since SPF is a
shareholder in both institutions.

The prudent and efficient management of the affairs
of SPF has been vested with the Board of Trustees,
which, as the highest decision making body, takes
high-quality strategic decisions which positions SPF
for the future.

| accepted the appointment as the Chairman of the
Board of Trustees in September 2018, with a resolve
to consolidate the strong foundation established
by my predecessors and to harness all available
opportunities to grow the Seychelles Pension Fund
so that its long term sustainability is assured.

In 2018, the Board of Trustees played a key role in
supporting the delivery of the continually growing
governance agenda and increasingly complex
pension administration environment that SPF
operates within.

Most of the Board of Trustees along with the top
management of SPF, attended a training on good
governance organized by PEMC, where they learned
more about their duties and responsibilities and their
principal role of making high-quality decisions in the
best interest of SPF, thus strengthening and ensuring
accountability, transparency and good governance
practices at all levels in SPF.

Annual Report 2018

TheBoardalsoengagedaninternationalfirmtoassess
and provide an effective system of risk management
and assess the internal audit function, so that SPF
continues with its risk-based management and that
there is zero exposure to fraud due to lack of internal
control as well as unethical business practices.

| take this opportunity to express my appreciation
and to thank all the members of the Board, for their
stewardship, contribution, dedication and high level
of commitment in bringing SPF to where it is today.

SPF would not have reached its current level of
success if it wasn't for the leadership and hard work
of its Chief Executive Officer and her dedicated and
committed staff. | wish to express my deepest
gratitude to them for their commitment, dedication
and hard work during 2018 making it yet another
successful year.

I look forward to continue working closely with them
in the future.

*”W

Jacquelin Dugasse
Chairman

Chapter 1| 1.1 | Foreword from the Chairman (continued) | Page 7



Seychelles Pension Fund

1.2 | CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

=
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As always, it is with pleasure that | share with you, in
my capacity as CEO of the Seychelles Pension Fund,
the annual report of the Seychelles Pension Fund, for
the period ending 31st December 2018.

At the beginning of 2018, | was very happy and honored
when | was re-appointed as CEO. Being the CEO of the
national pension fund is an extremely challenging and
stimulating job, but it is also a highly responsible task
to contribute to the safe and sustainable pension for
Seychellois workers.

Financial results

SPF weathered the storm in a challenging 2018 with
positive returns, building again on our relatively robust
financial situation, with strong earnings. We earned
a total gross surplus of SCR 214 million in 2018, an
increase of 60% compared to 2017.

This surplus, helped SPF grow to a peak of SCR 3.1
billion of assets, the highest to date, which is an
increase of 51% over the thirteen years since SPF’s
inception in 2006. Additionally, this represented an
increase of 11% over last year.

Continued growth in asset value remains heartening,
especially when this builds upon SPF's assets that are
accumulated through a combination of contributions
from employers and employees and from investment
returns.

Another record figure for SPF was the SCR 351 million
in contributions collected from our contributing
members which reached an all-time high of 43,561
members.

Chapter 1| 1.2 | CEQ’s Report | Page 8

“Keeping the members at the heart
of everything we do”

Contributions collected in 2018 was eleven times
more than when we started, whereas pension
payments increased 41 times, showing that SPF
needs to be vigilant and continue complying with
the actuary’s recommendation of contribution rate
increases in the future.

The number of pensioners increased over the year
by 12% to 5,501 pensioners, also the highest so far,
with pension payouts of SCR 286 milion, an increase
of 29% over 2017. Unlike 2017 most new pensioners
were on average 63 years old.

The growing individual employers registering with
SPF have also shown progression from 3,068
in 2017 to 3,120 in 2018. A similar trend was
registered in the self-employed from 1,653 in 2017
to 1,896 in 2018, an increase of an additional 243
self-employed registered. This has given us hope
that our Seychellois workers have increased trust
and confidence in SPF.

The overall coverage of SPF in 2018 increased to
the highest level ever recorded of 93%, taking SPF a
step closer towards its goal of 100 % coverage in the
years to come. SPF has 43,561 working members
out of 46,688 Seychellois, employed in the country
(as per NSB figures).

Surplus from excess contributions over pension
outgo was SCR 65 million whilst surplus
from investment income over investment and
administrative expenses was SCR 149 million,
totaling a combined surplus of SCR 214 million,
representing the second highest surplus since SPF
was set up. The positive increment was mostly due
toincreased contributions and increased investment
income from fair value in equities and properties.



Investment

SPF generated strong results on its investments for
2018. For the first time, SPF had real net returns at
market value of 9% for the year 2018, after all costs,
which was 2% higher than the strategic investment
return benchmark set for the year.

Although there were lower returns from financial
instruments and poorer dividends from our overseas
listed equity investments and Exchange Traded Funds
(ETFs), returns from real estate, domestic listed
equities and unlisted equities helped to augment
the overall returns. Over the last few years, SPF has
looked at its investments on a cost basis only, yielding
an average return of 8 % to 12 % per annum, which as
per market value, averaged 5% to 7%.

Customer care

SPF's role is critical to safeguarding the financial
security of its members and, while some may not
choose to be under our care, we are committed to
providing them with the very highest standards.
Keeping the members at the heart of everything we do
is critical to SPF’s success, and as our membership
grows, we continue to improve our services.

During the year, we continued to engage widely with
our growing membership and employer base, offering
a wide range of opportunities to interact with our
members either in person-face to face through our
offices on Mahe, Praslin and La Digue, or through
Customer Relations Unit to handle client queries.

We have also increased our presence on the social
media with a FaceBook, Twitter and YouTube account,
together with a webpage easily accessible to users,
which had a significant increase in member viewers
by over 50% compared to 2017.

The year 2018 has been one where we had to stand
together to correct misinformation and better educate
all concerned, especially our members on their rights
and their entitlements, and we will continue doing so.
Throughout the year SPF was able to maintain a level
of transparency through the press, social media and
its website, resulting in better communication with our
members on the products and services we provide
and having them make better choices in terms of their
contributions and pensions.

More innovative automated facilities are being worke

on especially in customer services for the next yea

Undoubtedly these changes will contribute towards
enhancing our customer experience and our internal
operations.
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2018 also saw SPF undertake the digitalization of it's
records.We work hard to earn the trust of workers
who depend on SPF to provide a foundation for their
retirement years. To earn that trust, we must be open
to scrutiny through both good and bad times. | had
the pleasure in 2018, in participating in the National
Assembly deliberations to approve these changes to
our Act.

Welook forwardto continuing this dialogue with all our
stakeholders mostly contributors and beneficiaries.
We also plan to hold an annual AGM briefing our
members on the activities of SPF for each year.

Staffing

It truly is an honor to lead an organization focused on
building a pension fund that will last for generations.
This critical purpose is the cornerstone of our
organization and we reinforce the idea with all our
employees. Successful management of a pension
fund is a knowledge-intensive business. To succeed
in our mission, SPF must be able to attract, develop
and retain people with great skills and potential.

At the same time, we must instill a culture with a deep
desire to develop and be constantly at the forefront
with best practices, which is why we provide training
to all our staff as far as possible. | am happy to
note that 96% of our staff underwent some form of
training in 2018.

Conclusion

| wish to place on record my appreciation for the hard
work and dedication of the management team and all
staff of SPF, thanking them for a highly successful
year and for their relentless commitment, support of
our

organization and our mandate.

Last, and certainly not least, | would like to thank our
Board of Trustees, for their trust in me and for placing
the best interest of SPF above all. 2019 will be a busy
year for us to ensure service quality remains high and
our investment outlook remains strong.

Thank you for another great year and | look forward
to the year ahead.

m__u'*_

——

Mrs. Lekha Nair
Chief Executive Officer

Chapter 1| 1.2 | CEO’s Report (continued) | Page 9



Seychelles Pension Fund

1.3 | FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A. Total Net Assets

SCR 3.0 billion (2018)
SCR 2.8 billion (2017)

B. Membership

Total Members' Funds: SCR 1.5 hillion
SCR 1.4 billion in 2017

Active Members: 43,561
(42,720in 2017)

Coverage: 93% of working population — 46,688
(88% in 2017)
Total active employers registered with SPF: 3,120

(2 % from 3,068 in 2017)

New employers: 314
(1% from 310 in 2017)

Total active self-employed registered with SPF: 1,896
(15% from 1,653 in 2017)

New Self Employed: 243
(15% less - 285in 2017)

C. Contributions

Mandatory Contributions: SCR 333 million received
from 43,561 contributors
(SCR 255 million from 42,760 in 2017)

Voluntary Contributions: SCR 18 million received from
8,150 contributors
(SCR 15 million from 6,357 in 2017 )

Total Contributions: SCR 351 million
(SCR 270 million in 2017)
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D. Pension and Benefits

Total Pension and Benefits: SCR 286 million
paid to 5,501 beneficiaries
(SCR 222 million to 4,929 in 2017)

Retirement pension: SCR 223 million paid to
4,214 beneficiaries
(SCR 164 million to 3,765 in 2017)

Permanent Incapacity pension: SCR 39 million
paid to 710 beneficiaries
(SCR 34 million to 632 in 2017)

Spouse Pension: SCR 17 million paid to
420 beneficiaries
(SCR 16 million to 387 in 2017)

Children Pension: SCR 4 million paid to 157
beneficiaries
(SCR 4 million to 157in 2017)

Others: SCR 3 million - 400 refunds
(SCR 4 million to 240 in 2017)

E. Surplus

Excess contributions over pension and benefit
payments : SCR 65 million
(SCR 48m in 2017)

Excess investment income over all investment
expenses and administrative costs:

SCR 149 million

(SCR 86 million in 2017)

Total Surplus for 2018: SCR 214 million
Total Surplus for 2017: SCR 134 million




F. Default cases of Employers

304 (194 in 2017) assessments cases of employers
in default of contributions.

Amount recovered: SCR 3 million

(SCR 2.5 million in 2017)

Surcharges levied was: SCR 1.1 million
(SCR 3.2 million in 2017)

G. Investments

Investment income: SCR 282 million

(20% increase from SCR 236 million in 2017)
that includes Other income (surcharges):
SCR 1 million

(SCR 4 million in 2017)

Total expenditure for investments and
administration: SCR 133 million
(SCR 150 million in 2017)

Excess Income over Expenditure: SCR 149 million
(SCR 86 million in 2017)

Rate of return for 2018 was 9% at market value
(6% at market value and 8% at cost in 2017)

Investment income represented 337% of total
revenue of SPF (39% in 2017) - Without fair value
depreciation/provision

H. Properties

27 Properties on Mahé, Praslin/La Digue
4 being developed
2 no income and yet to be developed

Property maintenance expenses: SCR 37 million
(SCR 30 million in 2017)

Net profit from rentals: SCR 78 million
(SCR 78 million in 2017)

Average occupancy rate of all SPF properties for
the year is 96%
(92% in 2017)

Real Estate worth SCR 1.5 billion at market value
(SCR 1.5 billion in 2017)

Annual Report 2018

l. Projects
No projects were completed in 2018.

5 Projects are ongoing:

1| New Commercial Building on
Independence Avenue (ex pirates arms)

2 | lle Perseverance Apartments

3 | lle du Port Project

4 | Pointe au Sel housing development

5| Le Chantier Mall renovation/extension

J. Staffing

SPF Workforce: 130
(6% increase from 123 in 2017)

12 Vacancies filled

7% Staff Turnover
(6% in 2017)

Developing talent

96% of SPF'’s staff underwent training,
providing more opportunities for
employees to receive professional training,
including international workshops.

K. Administrative Expenses
Administrative Expenses: SCR 44 million

(7% increase from SCR 41 million in 2017
reinstated from reported figure of SCR 39 million)

Chapter 1| 1.3 | Highlights for 2018 (continued) | Page 11



Seychelles Pension Fund

1.4 KEY EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Appointmient of new
board of Trusiees of SPF
by the Presasdent for a
three year maniate

Lawinch of penssan
aducationad cartaon sirip
in tha Mation "Fan man
AR DAY,

FEBRUARY

SPF pariicipates in
Independence Day
aslivitias a1 the
MELC hall

JUNE

SPF parficipates in Job &
innevation Tar a1 1CES

APRIL

] L ] ]
JANUARY MARCH MAY
Change in contrbution rate Celebration of intemational Women's Day EPF collaborates with the office of the

lar amployar riandatary
contributsan, increased 1o
2.5%

weraby all fernale stall wens gifted a
o

SPF pressnts beok entitled Art in
Seychalles to all schools in Seychelles in
& Geremony al the Mont Fleur Secondary
Sehoal

SPF participabes in activity arganized by
local NGO, UM Youth, o improve the
youth's knowledge of Financial institutions
in Sapchalles

SPF embarks on & series af warkplace
autreach pregrams refemed to as ‘clinkcs'
praviding information an pension and
encouraging waluntany conirnuicn

SPF organizes outreach programme an
Frasiin targating ®omsn aniraprenaurs
in coflaboration with Seychelles fssacia-
tien of Wamen Enire prenaur

3PF participates in Bois de Rose Easter
fair at STC Hypar market
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President im organizing the SPF May
Day mass at tha Roman Cathaolic
cathedral

Dinnar dance to calebrate labour day
Tar all stalf at Chilli Bar

SEF piganizes outreach activity 'SPF
Bz’ for public at the Oran mall

5FF organizes mformation sessaon for
staff members of IDC



EPF repres=nted by CED at the
25th apnual general mesting of
the AFREIXIM bank in Migeria

SFF reprasented by CED at the
Annuad Board of Governces
sharehoklers maesting of the Trads
and Developmant Bank {TDE) in
Kampala, Uganda

JULY

EPF organipes annual
genaral maeting for staff
ard teamn

busilding srerciae &l
Barjaya Beau Yallon Bay
bl

Participation in the Kreale
Festival |asenenad activity
with a fleat an tradgional
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Mational Azsembly deliberaticns
and subseguent approval

of the SPF amendmients 2018
and sasestran by Preaident

SPF arganizes youth musical
perfarmanse of Chrigtmas

carols af Carravelle House

SPF End of year staff party at

Seychellois staries fyani resort at Barbanns
OCTOBER DECEMBER
. L

SEPTEMBER

Ssaff of SPF bersfit from one
wesak traning provided by
Warld Bank cn PROST taolkii

SFF participates in conmventsan
for Seychallois diplamats
praviding inlarmatian and
guidansa on pension
entitlernents

NOVEMEER

5PF participation in 15th 1584
Imtarnational Conferamnsa of
Sccial Secuwity Actuarias,
Statisticians and nvesiment
specialtsts, Kuwalt Gy Kuwai

SPF oalebrates ntematicnal
man'a day, by gifting all male
staff with a bourannsens

Farticipation in the financial
ad wcation far ot the Camicn
Hall

Launch af the SPF Volumary
Cangributian Christmas
voaichar
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Seychelles Pension Fund

1.5 | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SPF BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1.5.1 The Seychelles Pension Fund (SPF) is governed by a Board of Trustees, entrusted with the overall
strategic direction of the organization.

. Farmer Managing Director
Mr Echain Palmer Mareh o Seplember 2018 of Seybrow g
Former Cabinel Minsster 4 puE of &
Br Jecqueiin Dugasee JApainiad September 2018 Foerryes CEID of 531
fir Patrick Payet Membar Secretary of Staie - MOF # ot of 10
e e i et e L pounot 10
Mr Bemerd Adones Member Aticamey &t Law G ot of 10
s Cilsa Mangroo e miber Principal Secratary - MOF B cant of 10
W Mabka Jivan Member Directar - Abscus Lid 10out of 10
s Marie-Claine Marie e mibes Farmer Prinicipsl Secretany 10008 of 10
bir Pater Snon Bl eribar Former Cabinet Minister Fonof 10
B Cindy Vidot Dol bt CEQSIE & ot of 100
Principal Procurement
M= Elsie Morel Mambser Orversight Officer gt al 10
M Brends Morin Member Execulive Dimecios - BGM 100 ot af 10
MAr Ravi Walmsni Bl Principel Becratary - MLUH B out of 10
Gerral Maragar Corporate
Mra Aid ray Manan Hoard Seoratang Sarvicas &t SPF 10 aut of 16

Meetings of the Board
The Board of Trustees is required to have, at least, twelve meetings in a year as per SPF Act 2005. The

meetings are held on the last Thursday of each month.

For 2018 the new Board of Trustees was nominated on the 26th February 2018 after the previous Board's
mandate expired on 31st January 2018 and the appointment took effect on the 1st March. The new Board

was thus able to have a total of 10 meetings for the year 2018.
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1.5.2 Committees
Under the good governance regime, the Board of Trustees have three committees to assist in its functions:

1. Investment and Finance Committee
2. Audit and Risk Committee
3. Remuneration Committee

In addition to the above committees, there are also three independent ad-hoc committees delegated by the
Board from tender evaluations and assessment of medical cases.

a. Tender Evaluation Committee
Assesses all the tenders of SPF projects, made up of a Chairperson from the private sector and 4 other
members from both public and private sector:

Mr. Jean Wheeling-Lee Chairperson
Mr. Mike Laval Member

Mr. Jean Rasool Member

Mr. Steven Rousseau Member

Mrs. Fanette Albert Member

Mr. Tommy Marie Secretary (SPF)

b. Tender Review Panel
Attends to all the appeals from tenders done by SPF and is chaired by an independent person from the private
sector with 3 members from both private and public sector.

Mr. Jean-Claude D'Offay Chairperson
Mr. Phillip Chong Seng Member

Mr. Patrick Stravens Member

Ms. Amanda Faure Member

Ms. Theresette Marie Secretary (SPF)

c. Medical Board

Assists SPF in advising on cases of incapacity applications. It comprises of medical practitioners from the
medical field, both private and public sector. The Board recommends whether the applicants will be eligible
for an incapacity pension whether for life or for a specific period of time. The composition of the current
Medical Boards is as follows:

Dr. Meggy Louange Chairperson

Dr. Egbert Telemaque Vice Chairman

Dr. Kenneth Henriette Member

Dr. Sethu Chetty Member

Ms. Annette Mondon Secretary

Mrs. Chantal Rosalie Assistant Secretary (SPF)

d. Appeals Committee of the Medical Board

A new Appeals Committee of the SPF Medical Board is being set up in 2019 to review appeals of the medical
cases and incapacity pension applications. The committee will be made up of public and private medical
practitioners.

Chapter 1| 1.5 | Corporate Governance | Comittees | Page 15



Seychelles Pension Fund

1.6 | MANAGEMENT OF SPF

1.6.1 Introduction

The Seychelles Pension Fund is headed by a CEO, appointed by the President. This role, for the past four years
has been occupied by Mrs Lekha Nair whose contract expired on 31 January 2018 and was subsequently
reappointed by the President for an additional period of three years under a new contract.

She is assisted by three General Managers, Mrs Marie-Ange Waye-Hive, General Manager for Pension and

Benefits, who retired on 31st December 2018 and Mrs Audrey Nanon, General Manager for Corporate Services.
The third post of General Manager for Investments is currently vacant.

1.6.2 Management Team

e Lekha Miair [+{dr} 01 February 2015
s Maria &nge Waye-Hiva pf::::. :';_“Th 15 February 1578
Mo Mgy Hanon ti:;:_”m 01 Fisbruary 217
e My &bkl Chinf Fimancs Officar 01 Hovembar 2015
ki Tommy Marie Chief Projects Officer 20 August 2007
i Marcus ke Chinf Praperty OFficer 01 July 2012
bt WA ieh il Charatis CHial Rk OFficai 18 April AT
W1 Jeffrey Moses Chied Berefits Officer 01 May 1599
Wi Joaey Ansslis Chiel IT Officar 011 Wb 2017
wl: Evar Mondon Maragar, Finance 01 &garil 1993

wir Lymia Bama Manages, HA & admdnisteaion 07 Soptermber 205
i Darell Brisiol Sarager Marketing & P2 a1 Orinbes 2004
W5 Jane Sureite Mansger, Complance Monhoning o May 20710
Wiy Tharaaatln barks Mansger Invesimenis 28 June N0

W Bipben Aiaalia Muansger IT 01 May 2013

tdem Ty Phiarisa Manager, Praclin L La Degisg 1B Apdil 2005

W Mmylene Spira i g, Fi sk W anasgarmant 01 Septembar 2015
W5 Lyne houwsiashs Qualey Apprsece Anake 19 Feteuary 2007

u Chamal Renaud Baragar, Froperty 01 Septembaar 2015
ui Hicholae Fimnne Manuges, Custamer: Ralations 12 January 1998
s Changel Poanke Mnnugar, Projects 10 Deiober 2005
e Wincaim Adam Marage Projcis 0 June 009
s Itandy Payed Mannager, Processing 01 Jarvuary 2006
ur Adrian Pillay Azl Mansger, Intarsal Audil 04 Septamber 2017

Chapter 1| 1.6 | Management Team | Page 16



Annual Report 2018

1.6.3 | Management Committees

a | Management Investment Committee

The Management Investment Committee meets every week and is the forum for anything relating to
investments and projects whereby they are initially screened, approved and recommended to the Board’s
Investment Committee.

b | Procurement Committee
The Procurement Committee was established to ensure compliance with SPF’'s procurement policy. The
committee ensures that the most competitive procurements are always made.

c | Disciplinary Committee
This Committee deals with all unethical work practices and disciplinary issues of SPF staff.

1.7 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF SPF
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2.2 CORPORATE INFORMATION
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2.1 | ECONOMIC BACKGROUND

2.1.1 Introduction

The macroeconomic performance of Seychelles for 2018 was strong with a real GDP growth of 4.1%,
reflecting strong output from the tourism industry with high tourism earnings, as well as from the fishery and
the information and communications sector.

The Central Bank of Seychelles’ (CBS) monetary policy and interventions throughout the year helped contain
inflationary pressures, with inflation having increased to 4.4% in 2018 from 2.9 % in 2017. This was due to
higher global energy prices and 2017 fiscal measures, which included a higher minimum wage, increased
social spending (increase in the universal state pension from SCR 5,050 to SCR 5,250), and higher civil
service wages (raised through the mandatory “13th month salary”). However, there was a slowdown in the
construction sector, as a result of the moratorium on large hotels and scarcity of construction materials.

All of this has been achieved amidst rising international fuel prices, weakening key tourism markets linked
to uncertainty over the Eurozone, uncertainty of the Brexit and global banks’ withdrawal of correspondent
banking relationships. The exchange rate remained stable in 2018 at 13.9 Seychellois rupees to the US dollar.

Globally, after the robust and synchronized growth of 2017, there was volatility in late 2018, with the rate of
acceleration in global economic growth moderated quite significantly. The major driver of the slowdown was
the impact of tightening financial conditions globally, particularly in China, as trade tensions impact business
sentiment and investment.

2.1.2 Labour market

Seychelles, as any other SIDS, has a small labour force and a small economy that is susceptible to external
shocks and climate change. Other socio-economic challenges are social ills (such as drugs and alcohol
abuses, teenage pregnancies, and an increasingly mobile workforce) that impacts heavily on the labor and
employment structures and its dynamics. This changes the demographic developments for the future, as
population projections by World Bank show an aging population, with low fertility and birth rates on one side,
as added dampener and increased life expectancy on the other side. The average life expectancy in 2018 was
75 years.

Employment is a critical sector in Seychelles and apart from job creation it is a source of livelihood for the
people and contributes significantly towards economic growth. However, in recent times there has been
more dependence on foreign labour to fill in the gap in the labour market. According to NSB, 2018 recorded
a total of 22,000 expatriate workers in Seychelles compared to 17,757 in 2017. This increase is due to the
country’s lack of labor force in certain sectors such as in construction and tourism.

As has been the case for the past few years, SPF faced difficulties in getting correct and accurate information
on the labour market, especially the number of “employables” or labour force, and the number employed
both in the formal and informal sector. As per NSB’s published 3rd quarterly publications, there are 49,355
employed in total. Our understanding after consultations with NSB, is that there are 2,667 expatriate workers
in the formal sector also included in this figure and if this is excluded there would be 46,688 employed
Seychellois.

2.1.3 Unemployment rate

The year 2018 witnessed a drop in the unemployment rate in Seychelles from 5 percent to 3.5 percent. This
is largely due to the reintroduction of the unemployment relief scheme in 2017 by the Ministry of Employment
and Labour. The aim of the scheme was to encourage the working population to get back into employment
especially the group that is more affected by unemployment, the 15-24 year olds, made up of 55.5 percent
males and 44.5 percent females. In total around 1,900 people were able to find employment through the
scheme.
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2.2 | CORPORATE INFORMATION

2.2.1 ABOUT US

WHO WE ARE

Seychelles Pension Fund (SPF) was established in
January 2006, by an Act of Parliament, as an earning
replacement mechanism to enable qualifying members
to live in basic comfort upon retirement.

SPF operates a Defined Benefit pension system where its
members - Seychellois employees, receive a prescribed
pension amount as per a formula, upon retirement for
life. It is a ‘Pay-as-you-go’ plan where the generation of
tomorrow, pays for the workers of today, and the workers
of today pay the workers of yesterday. SPF comprises of
three main departments for the efficient delivery of all
its services.

1| Pension and Benefits - Core function
2 | Investments - Supplementary function
3 | Corporate Services - Support function

WHAT WE DO

SPF manages the national pension system of the country.
SPF collects contributions from its members who are
Seychellois workers and provides them with pensions and
benefits on retirement. Seychellois workers are those in
employment, including all workers from the formal sector,
both the public and private sector, informal employment,
self-employed, part-time and casual workers.

VISION

‘The Seychelles Pension Fund will be a leader and
model among retirement systems, by providing the best
retirement and related benefit package for its members’.

MISSION

‘The Seychelles Pension Fund is dedicated to manage
and secure its funds through prudent investments and
innovative methods to pay out the optimum retirement
and related benefits to its members'.

OBJECTIVES OF THE SPF

2.2.2 SPF CORE VALUES

PRUDENCE | by Prudence, we Mean:

+ Acting with diligence, competence and reliability

+ Delivering best results after cautious and sensible
analysis

INTEGRITY | by Integrity, we Mean:

+ Being ethical and truthful

+ Maintaining good governance practices

* Not misrepresenting or withholding information
that stake holders are entitled to

+ Being reliable and accountable for all action

+ Must safeguard the credibility

+ Ensure accuracy at all times

EMPATHY | by Empathy, we Mean:

+ Caring

« Client focused

+ High standard of customer service

TEAMWORK | by Teamwork, we Mean:

+ Working collectively and cooperatively as staff of
SPF

+ Smooth seamless flow of services

« Communicating openly and frequently with our

stakeholders

« Setting out information in a format that is clear
and understandable to all

+ Being open to scrutiny and oversight

CONFIDENTIALITY | by Confidentiality, we Mean:

+ Holding in strict confidence information obtained
on clients of SPF

+ Working with the highest professionalism at all

times

« Earning the trust of all stakeholders

1. Secure the prompt and accurate collection of contributions and payment of all sums due.
2. Provide for the financial security of members by payments of a monthly pension or prescribed
retirement benefits and other benefits on meeting the qualifying conditions.

. Timely, accurate and helpful service to our customers.

. Be customer focused at all times.

OoNOUL bW

. Foster good management practices for the efficient and effective management of SPF.

. Prudent investment of excess funds which are not for the time being required by SPF.

. Manage the resources available to secure value for money in all aspects of SPF's operations.
. Provide timely and high quality advice and information about SPF to its stakeholders.

. Contribute to the social security and its evaluation and development.

10. Encourage self-employed persons to be members of the Fund and contribute to SPF.
11. Enable members to save additionally through the voluntary contributions.

12. Meet our funding target through prudent and effective management of SPF.

13. Deliver excellent customer services to our members and other stakeholders.

14. Pursue our mission within a high calibre framework of risks management.
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2.2.3 Corporate Offices | Auditors | Lawyers

Headquarters
Seychelles Pension Fund
Praslin Office Carravelle House, PO Box 576 La Digue Office
Pension Fund Complex Victoria, Mahé, Seychelles Pension House
Grand Anse, Praslin Telephone: (+245) 429 4699 La Passe, La Digue
Telephone: (+248) 423 7080 Fax: (+248) 422 5037 Telephone: (+24E) 423 5100
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AUDITORS

Pool and Patel Chartered Accountants
PO Box 117

Maison La Rosiere

Palm Street, Victorla

LAWYERS

Mr Francis Chang-Sam

Barrister and Attorney at Law and Notary Public
Kingsgate House, Victoria

@s

Mr Joel Frank Camille

Barrister and Attorney at law and Notary Public
Sound and Vision House

Francis Rachel Street, Victoria
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Email: info
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3.1 | PENSION AND BENEFITS

Compliance for
collection of

contributions

Processing for the
updating of

member accounts
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all pensions
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client-organisation
relationship

Pension and Benefit Department- core function
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3.1.1 | COMPLIANCE

This section is responsible for the collection of all contributions, both mandatory and voluntary, from
employers and employees including the self-employed.

a) Registered members
The total registered membership of SPF continued to increase in the year 2018 with a total of 43,561 active
members compared to 42,760 in 2017.

This included a total of 801 new members representing an increase of 2%. A record membership for SPF
since inception. Coverage is also at an all time high of 93%.

Table showing Membership of SFF | classified by age group and sex

15-14 A 653

1,121

0- 24 502 2408 4, 210
2579 3129 2,672 5,801
30-34 3155 2. 435 5, SE0 54%
33-39 2, 9a1 3 302 5, 263
A0 - 44 2,990 2,142 5, 140
45 - 49 2, 757 2118 i, 573
50-%4 2, Ba2 2 022 4, &84 32%
55 - 5 2, M6 1, 850 4,186

& - &3 7o BT 1, 468
4%
Over 63 30 127 as7

As shown above 64% of SPF members fall within the age range of 15 to 44 years and thus considered young
meaning they will be contributing to SPF for a period of more than 15 years. On the other hand, SPF has to
ensure that it has sufficient funds for the remainder 32%, who would be retiring in 15 years or less. The 4%
working and contributing are those who have already retired.

b) Contributions

SPF has an obligation under the SPF Act 2005, to ensure the prompt collection of contributions from
employers/ employees/self-employed and allocate these contributions to the members’ accounts
accurately and in a timely manner.

The Act also prescribes for the SPF to investigate any issues relating to non-payment of contributions
and unregistered employers and employees and to collect arrears with surcharges if necessary.
In addition, the education of employers and employees are also carried out in tandem with these
monitoring and compliance activities to encourage compliance.
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(i) Mandatory contributions
For 2018, a total of SCR 333 m was collected as mandatory contributions representing an increase
of 31% compared to SCR 255m in 2017.

The total contribution rate applicable for the year 2018 was 5.5% - 3%from the employees and 2.5%
from the employers. This applies to any person working in full time or part-time employment. Self-
employed persons are required to make a contribution of 5.5% of the declared salary or SCR357,
whichever is greatest.

The mandatory contribution guarantees a monthly pension for life to each pensioner provided that
they meet the criteria, which is a minimum of 10 years of continuous contribution to SPF immediately
prior to retirement or an aggregate period of 20 years of contribution prior to retirement. Once the
criteria is met, the members become “vested members” and as such benefits with a pension upon
retirement. The “non-vested members” accounts only are credited with interest because they do
not qualify for a pension and the full amount standing in the account will have to be refunded upon
retirement.

(ii) Voluntary Contributions

The Voluntary Contribution Scheme encourages members to make additional savings by
contributing more on a voluntary basis. The minimum monthly voluntary contribution is SCR 50.
Voluntary contributions, are refunded to members, with interest, when they retire and start drawing
their pensions.

For 2018 a total of SCR 18m was collected as voluntary contributions, an increase of 20 % compared
to SCR 15 m in 2017. Effective 2019, voluntary contributions can be withdrawn once the members
reach the age of 55 years. All voluntary contributions are credited with an annual interest as per
SPF’s interest policy. For 2018 SPF had 1,799 more members making voluntary contributions as
compared to 2017, making a total of 8,150 members contributing.

c) Match/It Scheme

SPF has a Match-It Scheme that encourages employers to match, in full or in part, whatever vol-
untary contributions their employees make. There was a total of 5 employers registered for the
scheme in 2018.

d) Comparison of Contributions collected over past two years

Amouwnt SCR° m Camiribiuiara Arpeaint SCR' m Contributors Armaunt Z0R m

WL M TARY 6,351 15 8,180 18 + 1,798 +3

b AP LB TRy 42, Teh 255 43,5581 333 + B + TR

Chapter 3 | 3.1.1 | Compliance | Pension and Benefits | Page 25



Seychelles Pension Fund

SCR 148m (43%) SCR 185m (52%)
Emiployer Mandatory Employes Mandatory

SCR 14m (4%) SCR 4m (1%)
Employee Voluntary Employer Voluntary

e) Recovery of Un-Paid Contributions
A total 304 assessments cases were made against employers in default of contributions in 2018 and a sum
of SCR3m was recovered as a result in contributions along with SCR1.1.m in surcharges.

f) Employers

The total new employers registeredin 2018 were 314 comparedto 310in 2017. The total employers registered
with SPF was 3,120, an increase of 2% from 3,068 in 2017. This is the net figure of new registered employers
for the year less those who ceased operations in the year.

g) Self-Employed

There is a reduction in total new self-employed for 2018 at 243 compared to 285 in 2017. The total self-
employed registered with SPF however, was 1,896, which is an increase of 15% from 1,653 in 2017. This is the
net figure of new registered self-employed for the year less those who ceased operations in the year.

Table showing new employers and self-employed for the past four years

243 296 310 314 90 213 2B3 243
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h) Detection of unregistered employers
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Throughout 2018 SPF made several spot checks for unregistered employers and followed up on complaints
lodged by employees. In total 40 Complaints were lodged and as a result 7 unregistered employers were
detected. The remaining 33 cases were dealt with as queries on missing contributions.

It is encouraging to note that employees in general are more aware of their rights and the contribution that

employers are obligated to make on their behalf.

i) Membership of the Seychelles Pension Fund (2006-2018)

2006 33, 505
2007 3z, 104
2008 32,174
200% a0, 166

2010 33.3N
201 a5, 252
2012 3%, 461

2013 40, 275
2014 ae 117
2015 41, 78T

2016 41, 085
2017 42, 720
2018 43, 5451
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j) Comparison of pensioners with active contributors for the past 5 years.
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3.1.2 PROCESSING

a) Members' Accounts
An account is maintained with the SPF for each registered member. The account is maintained separately
for the mandatory and voluntary contributions and the interest is also credited to the respective accounts.

b) Interest for Member Accounts
Members’ accounts are credited with an interest on a yearly basis which are added to their contributions.

The interest rate for 2018 was 5.99% for Voluntary contributions and 4.81% for Mandatory contributions. For
2018, the interest was reviewed in October 2018 following the introduction of a new Interest policy. Up until
that point the interest rate was 2.5% for both contributions. As explained in para 3.1.1 b (i), interest is credited
to non-vested members only as the vested members are eligible for a pension upon retirement.

c) Allocation of contributions

SPF keeps up-to-date members’ account and ensures that the prescribed contributions paid by employers
and employees are allocated to each member’s account in time each month. In 2018, allocation was done
electronically for Government employees, the largest employer, through an in-house IT system, designed to
allocate and reconcile all member accounts with payroll, which was done manually before. For 2018, SPF
managed to allocate all contributions paid, to member’s accounts by year end which was fully reconciled for
the year. This new system of electronic monthly allocation and reconciliation, will be extended to all other
employers in the coming year.

Contributions over Pensions Paid

w
B

006 X007 ROE 2000 2010 A011 2012 2013 AQl4 2015 2016 2AD1Y 2018

e 7y 1 LT BT S

pEASEon payaut
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3.1.3 BENEFITS

a) Types of Pension & Benefits paid

HMormal Retirement Pension

Permanent Incapacity Pension

Survivimg Spouse’s Pension

Children's Pension

Refunds-Migration &
Mon-Qualifying Refunds
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b) Pensions and benefits paid in 2018
SPF paid SCR 288 million to 5,501 beneficiaries in 2018, showing an increase of 29% and 12% in both amount
paid and in beneficiaries, compared to 2017.

For Retirement pension, aged 60 years and above, a total amount of SCR 223m (includes SCR 5 million for
voluntary contribution refunds) was paid to 4,214 retirees. This represented an increase of 12% retirees
compared to 3,765 in 2017, but the amount paid increased by 36%.

For Permanent Incapacity pension, a total of SCR 39 million was paid out in monthly pensions to 710
beneficiaries, an increase of 12% in beneficiaries and 15% increase in payment over 2017.

Spouse pension paid was SCR 17 million to 420 beneficiaries, the pension increased by 6% in beneficiaries
and 13% on amount paid.

The Children’s pension stayed at SCR 4 million, as per the previous year and were paid to 157 children.

For lump sum refunds, a total amount of SCR3 million was paid to 400 applications. This figure represents
less the amount of last year but an increase of 67% in application for refunds.

The chart below shows the pension amount and number of beneficieries paid.

SCR 39m (14%)

SCR 17m (6%) Permanent Incapacity | 710 Individuals

Surviving Spouse | 420 Individuals

SCR 4m (1%)
Children | 157 Individuals

SCR 3m (1%)
Refunds - Migration &
non-qualifying refunds

SCR 223m (78%)
Retirarmant | 4,274 Pensionears
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c) Indexation of pension

The indexation is a means of increasing pension annually based on the rate of inflation. SPF’s Act requires
that the inflation rate as at 31st October of the previous year be used for indexation. For 2018, based on
inflation as at 31st October 2017, as published by NSB was 2.26%, which was used to increase the pensions
for the year.

d) Administration of Public Sector Special Pension on behalf of the Government

The administration of the Public Sector Special pension on behalf of the government for 425 pensioners was
continued in 2018 with a total of SCR5.25 million paid. In addition, the pension for SPDF army personnel
continued to be also administered and the amount of SCR2.9m was fully refunded along with the SCR5.2m
by the government.

Relunds 3 9 1 L 3

Gramnd Tatal P L 3,670 1 4347 = 4,529 2ET ES0 ZBE
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3.1.4 | CUSTOMER RELATIONS

a) The primary objective of this section is to liaise with all SPF stakeholders especially members. The section
receives and processes pensions and other benefit applications, provides advisory service to members to
help them prepare for their retirement, and assists with pension queries. The section additionally helps in
marketing and updating member’s information in the SPF’'s database. The section was newly created in
2017 and is headed by one of the longest serving staff of SPF with a rich knowledge of the operations of the
pension system.

b) A total of 3,819 customers i.e around 15-20 customers a day, were attended to in 2018 by this Section,
due to the popularity of the “Pas kot fon pansyon pou en konversasyon” campaign. The section received 11
complaints which were all dealt with and 953 satisfied customers, out of a total feedback of 964, showing that
98% of customers had a positive experience with SPF. The process of customer satisfaction and feedback is
being reinforced through the use of specific forms.

3.1.5 | PRASLIN & LA DIGUE

a) The SPF offices located on Praslin and La Digue, respectively, were both set up to ensure that SPF was
able to successfully reach the population on both islands and guarantee that the services on offer were more
easily accessible to them.

b) Both these offices are involved in the collection of contributions, the provision of advisory services and
able to receive applications for benefits whilst the payments of pensions and benefits are administered
directly from the SPF Head Office. These offices also manage the rentals of SPF’s properties on both the
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3.1.6 ANALYSIS

a) Analysis of Surplus of contributions over pension payment and investment income over administrative and
investment expenses.

2006 | 207 | F0O8 | 200D | 2010 | 2001 | D012 | 3013 | d014 | 2005 | Fo06 | 2E0T | 200A
SORM | BORM| ECRM| SCA'M| SCRM| SR M| SCRM| SCRM| SCRM | SCIRM| SCRM | SCRM | SCR'M

b) Analysis of new pensioners for the last five years which shows that for the year 2018 retirees were mostly
around 63 years old compared to 2017 when most new pensioners retired at 60 years.
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3.2 | INVESTMENTS

Investments

Projects

Properties
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3.2.1 | INVESTMENTS

a) Investment Performance
SPF is the largest institutional investor in Seychelles, equal to 15% of the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) as
at year end 2018, with an investment portfolio of SCR 3 billion.

SPF made SCR 282 million at a total rate of return of 9% at market rate, from all its investments in 2018.
Total expenditure in investments and administration was SCR 133 million, generating a surplus of SCR 149
million from investments. If fair value, provisions and depreciation is removed from the investment income
and expenditure, the net surplus would be SCR 49 million, the highest that SPF has earned since inception.

b) SPF Total Revenue
SPF’s total revenue is made up of 33% (SCR 172m) from investments and 67% (SCR 351m) from contributions.

Investment income here is less of fair value/provisions plus depreciation.

Total Revenue Composition

Investment ncame: (33%)

. Persacn Comtributions (67&)
c) Investment Portfolio

Investment Portfolio as at 31 December 2018 | SCR 3 Billion
Total Return at market value 9%

Fined income SCR 020 (28%)

Heturrey
o= Peeal Extate 507 1,406 [30%)

Peatiiing 75

Eqaitios SCR 67 5m (19%)
Ruriuens: 24%

Consh Erquivalwst 50 57 (3%}
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Investment Portfolio by Sector

Real Estata
Commercial (44%)

Financial (32%)
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Liquidity of SPF's Investments
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e) Fixed Income
Fixed Income includes Government securities and
fixed term deposits with commercial banks.

Investments in Government Securities represented
16% of the portfolio (SCR 476 million) while
investments in fixed deposits account for 12% of
the portfolio (SCR 353 million). Returns generated
from fixed income is 5%.

Interest income dropped to SCR42.9 millionin 2018
from SCR 47.8 million in 2017. This was a result of
overall lower interest rates from Government Bonds
and Treasury Bills.

f) Domestic Equities

Investments in domestic equities is 12% of the
portfolio (SCR 352 million). SPF has shareholding
in 5 domestic companies; Seychelles Breweries,
SACOS, Al Salam Bank Seychelles and Seychelles
Commercial Bank, Central Common Cold store.

g) International Equities

In its efforts to diversify its portfolio and take
advantage of new opportunities, SPF has invested
SCR 228 min overseas equities, which accounts for
8% of the portfolio. SPF has investments in fixed
income instruments, private equities and listed
equities on the international stock exchange.

Dividend income from both domestic and

international equities increased to SCR 14.9 milion
from SCR 14.1million in 2017 which is mostly due to
increase in dividends from Afrexim Bank, TDB and
Seybrew. Returns generated from both domestic
and international equities are 24%, inclusive of
capital appreciation.

Annual Report 2018

h) Real Estates

Investments inreal estate represents 50% - SCR 1.486
billion of the investment portfolio. The real estate
portfolio remains a key investment, which is being
reviewed due to changes in the real estate market.
The amount of income generated from properties
continue to increase every year with the completion
of new projects. However, in 2018, there were no
new completed projects. Rental income increased to
SCR 115 million from SCR 108 million in 2017. This
increase was due to SPF undertaking a thorough
review of its rental rates on certain properties. Despite
that, maintenance costs were higher in 2018 at SCR
37 million compared to SCR 30 million in 2017, as a
result of major renovation programme undertaken to
some of SPF’s properties like Le Chantier Mall and
Oceangate House.

Returns generated from real estate is 7%.

i) New policies

A new Valuation of properties policy for all SPF
properties was drafted and implemented in 2018,
whereby each property was valued based on the
income method, and separately for land and buildings.
A new policy for Valuation of unlisted equities was
also introduced using the adjusted net asset value
method.

J) New Investment Strategy

A new investment strategy with specific targets,
was implemented in 2018 towards achieving strong,
sustainable returns.

As part of the reviewed investment strategy for the
short, medium and long term, it was decided to gear
SPF’s investments away from real estate towards a
more diversified portfolio. The aim of SPF has always
been to seek a maximum rate of return without
undue risk of loss of capital invested, by investing
contributions not needed to pay current benefits,
in order to build a reserve fund to help ensure the
sustainability of the fund for future generations.

The future strategy for investment is to steadily
broaden and diversify the assets and geographical
mix of the investment portfolio, with medium risk, by
widening our equities in the global market to enhance
liquidity and long-term returns.
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3.2.2 | PROJECTS

This section is the implementing arm of SPF for undertaking building
of projects once investment decisions have been made.
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a) Commercial Building on Independence Avenue (Pirates Arms Re-Development Project)

Independence Avenue, Victoria, Mahé

A multi-storey commercial building with a modern look including a feel of creole architecture is being
proposed for the Pirates Arms Property. Facilities that will be incorporated in this development are semi
basement parking for 42 vehicles, 6 shops, 3 floors of offices, 1 floor of entertainment facilities, 1 food court
and 2 restaurants. The total area of the entire building will be 13,631 square meters.

Design/Drawings

Main Building: The following architectural designs
& drawings were completed:

- Site, floor and elevation plans

+ Detail and component plans

* Interior design and specifications

* Engineering - Piling designs and all
structural plans

* Mechanical, Plumbing & Electrical

About 95% of all MEP works were completed:

* This involved electrical,
« Air conditioning, plumbing, drainage
+ Designs including elevators

Quantity Surveying:

+ About 90% of the Bill of Quantities were
completed. The estimated cost plans and
cash flow for the year 2019 were also
completed.

b) Tenants Accommodation

Interior designs and specifications for the following
facilities were completed after the tender and award
for the 3 restaurant and gaming casino were made
in 2017:

* Main restaurant on the ground floor
* The three fast food areas on the ground
floor.
* The casino and entertainment on the first floor
* Fine dining restaurant at the top floor
Office spaces: 3 Floors

Piling work

This work commenced in late December 2017
but had to stop after being issued with a stop
notice by the Planning Authority in January 2018.
This was because of the tilting of the CBS Annex
building. Eleven piles had been installed by then.

In view that there were no local geo-technical
engineer to further guide SPF on the issue, a
South African firm known as Ground Africa was
appointed on 9th February 2018 to conduct an
investigation and make recommendations on

the way forward. The decision from Ground Africa
was to secure the building through ‘under-pinning’.
CBS however preferred to pull it down and build a
new one after they did a seperate investigation. A
compensation amount was also asked by CBS,
which is now being discussed as well as arbitration
with piling contractor.

A reviewed piling methodology is also being
submitted for work to resume in early 2019.

Consultants and Contractor Involved on the
Project:

Project Manager: Atvantage Group

Architect: Ekoarkitek

Structural Engineer: F&D Structural Consultants
Quantity Surveyor: Hooloomann Project
Services Ltd

Mechanical Electrical and Plumbing Consultant:
IBEC (Sey)

Piling Contractor: Vijay Construction (Pty) Ltd
Main Building Contractor: Not yet appointed
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b) lle Perseverance Residential
Apartments Project

i. Intreduction
Due to the high demand for affordable
housing in the country, SPF decided to
launch itself into this market. The project
consists of 24 two bedroom apartments
and 18 one bedroom apartments on a 3127
square meter plot on lle Perseverance. The
project is for rentals but SPF will look at
selling the apartments nearer to completion
and subject to demand.

Iin December 2018 the construction work

was in its 28th week with just under a
completion rate of 50%.
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ii.Piling Works
The piling work was completed on time and within
budget.

iil.Consultants and Contractors appointed after
tender for the Project

Architect: JS Design

Structural Engineer: WNC Consulting

Quantity Surveyor: LO Consultant

Machanical Electrical and Plumbing Consultant:
IBEC (Sey)

Electrical & Fire Alarm System Contractor: Vijay
Construction (Pty) Ltd

Public Health & Fire Fighting Services Contractor:
Vijay Construction (Pty) Ltd

Piling Contractor: Vijay Construction (Pty) Ltd
Main Bullding Contractor: Vijay Construction (Pty)
Ltd



i. Introduction
This project was considered firstly to stop water
leakage and extensive terraced roof damage so as to
prevent rain water from entering through the cracks on
the fourth floor slab and the atrium, which was
affecting the tenants below. On analysis, SPF decided
to build 336 sgm of new commaercial space on the 4th
floor with all the necessary facilities and a new atrium,
as it was a viable option to solve the problem and eam
more rental income, especially since there is a
demand for office space.

ii. Works contracted

The contract for the construction and intemmal
partitioning works was awarded to Allied Buildars.
During the end of the fourth quarter they provided a
shop drawing for the development and it was
approved by SPF. The contractor has began the
procurement procedure for the steel frame structure
and external cladding. The main works are expected
to commence early 2019 and to be completed by
mid-year.

c) Le Chantier Mall (Creation of new office and atrium)

Annual Report 2018

iii.Consultants and Contractors appointed
after tender for the Project

Architect: In House

Structural Engineer; Esparon Civil and
Structural Eng. Consultant

Mechanical Electrical and Plumbing
Consultant: In House

Electrical & Fire Alarm System Contractor:
ME.J Electrical

Internal Partitioning works: Allied Builders
HVAC Contractor: Allied Builders

Main Building Contractor: Allied Builders
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d) Pointe Aux Sel Housing Project

i} This project was conceived with the intention
of providing affordable housing to the local
market. The idea was to construct and then seall
the houses to first time home buyers preferably.

L L iy L

SPF purchased the property in 2018. As a forward
planning initiative, the section completed six differant
house designs ready to be submitted to the Planning Authority.

The section also completed the documentation for the tender
of the following:

1) Clearance of the whole property and,
2] Topography Survey m.::‘

Consultants and Contractor Involved on the Project J‘JE.-?J:W? Fu #}'sﬂ
HNone appointed for the moment
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&) lle du Port Project

i. Introduction

The project was initiated in order to cater for the high demand for
warehouses and archives in the local market. The construction
contract was awarded in December 2018 to Wellpoint Development

Pty Ltd.

i. Piling Works
The piling work was completed on time and within budget.

iii. Consultants and Contractor Involved on the Project

Architect: R & R Architect

Structural Engineer: FED Structural Consultants

Quantity Surveyor: LQ Consulting

Mechanical Electrical and Plumbing Consultant: PROBLURO
Electrical & Fire Alarm Systern Contractor: Vijay Conatruction
Public Health & Fire Alarm System Contractor; Rey & Lenferna (Sey)
HVAC Contractor: Machinery and Equipment

Piling Contractor: United Concrete Products (Seychelles)

Main Building Contractor: Wellpoint Developrment Pty Ltd
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3.2.3 | PROPERTY SECTION

a) Introduction

The Property Section manages SPF's rental properties and it's principal responsibility is the collection of
rental income and the diligent management of maintenance expenses.It consists of a dedicated property
management maintenance team that continually finds new ways of cutting costs without it being detrimental
to the upkeep of our premises.

SPF has remained the landlord of choice in Seychelles through effective management of our premises.SPF

has 27 properties, of which 21 generate income, two vacant plots of land that do not generate any income
and four are being developed.

b) List of all SPF properties

1. Huteau Lane Complex

2. Caravelle House

3. La Clementine

4. Port Glaud Craft Village

5. Providence Micro Enterprise

6. Providence Warehouse

7. Pension Complex Praslin

8. Praslin Holiday Home

9. Eve Island Enterprise

10. Eve Island Cold Storage

11. Eve Island Dry Goods store

12. La Passe Pension House

13. Unity House

14. Maison Collet

15. Corail D'Or Apartments

16. Continental Complex

17. Ocean Gate House

18. Le Chantier Mall

19.  Orion Mall (second floor)

20. Maison Simone

21.  Parcel V18604 (5th June Avenue opposite Maison Collet)
22. Anse alaMouche (noincome)
23.  Property on La Digue (no income)
24. Ex-Pirates Arms (being developed)
25. lle Perseverance (being developed)
26. lle du Port (being developed)

27.  Pointe au Sel (being developed)
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c¢) Occupancy Rate
As part of our mandate, it is imperative for the Property Management section to attain and maintain a very

high occupancy rate for all of our properties. For 2018, the overall occupancy was 96%.

Occupancy rate of SPF Properties as at 31st December 2018

m m ittt i m

Huitia i L i Cozimpli Wictoiia a2 Tod
Criwvalin Hou Wkwb 3 11
La Clemeniine Baie Sie Anne Praclin & 100
P IEA Caaft Wilogse Pairt Glaid (] L
Frosidenss: ES PFuradence: Indueinel Leinge 12 101
MEiEnn Siwona IEA e Aodeau 12 100
e Ml Vicioro 1 1HI
Prosidine Bandance Proridenis w 100
Fension Compler Crand Ania Prashin 54 140
Pamssil n Holkdery Homme** Eva lakand Preslin g -
Eve Isfard Emppiise e bsband Presshin b =
i P izee Panmicn Hiwrs e Yicdnnie 14 (=]
Urely Hoijas Wictora 145 100
Waison Collet [office spaces) [P — 2 100
Waisom Gollet [Parking Spaces] | Yictoria Ll 160
Corall v Apariments Piexrth Fasst Pt 2B 1o
Cenengpie Hours Vicloria 1 100
Lix Carilier bsll Viclora an 100
it men i T TR 7 100

* PG IEA Craft Village is leased to SENPA, although they are leasing out only the Restaurant/Take-away
and the other kiosks are empty.

**  Praslin Holiday Home has been leased out.

***  Eve Island Cold Storage is occupied by APEX.

**** | a Passe Pension House, excluding SPF Office.

The amount of rentable units depends on the amount of leases issued.
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d) Rent collection

Timely collection of rent and other charges remains very important for us. In order to reduce the number of
late and/or outstanding rent payments we have ensured that the majority of our tenants pay their rent via a
monthly standing order that was introduced in 2017.

This has greatly reduced the number of non-paying tenants that our Rent Compliance Officer has to follow up
and pursue at the end of the month. During the course of the year the non-active tenants have continued to
make an effort in reducing their outstanding balance. However, we still had to take some new cases to Rent
Tribunal court.

A new policy for Bad Debts on rentals was introduced that strengthens the existing procedures of SPF, in
terms of non-payment or delay in rent payments.

e) Rental Income per Property
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The graph above shows the rental income per property collected in 2018.
The data is showed in millions and in increments of 200,000. Properties with a value under 200,000
are not shown on this graph.
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Percentage of Rent Income per property as at 31 December 2018

/ Maison Collet: 15 %
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f) Service Delivery and Property/Facilities Management

The timely and efficient reporting of any shortcomings at any of SPF’'s premises remain an important aspect
of our service delivery to our tenants. It is for this reason that there are caretakers, general helpers and
cleaners always on site to ensure that any immediate issues can be attended to.

With our maintenance contractor at hand, SPF also ensures that any maintenance related issues are attended
to as soon as possible in order to reduce the level of dissatisfaction and/or inconvenience that it may have
on tenants together with ensuring proper upkeep of all our properties. Maintenance costs are controlled and
monitored to avoid escalating costs that could spiral out of control, if not prudent with spending and diligent
planning of major renovation works.
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3.3 | CORPORATE SERVICES

Finance

Information &
Technology

Marketing &
Public

Relations
Human
Resources &
Administration
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3.3.1 | FINANCE SECTION

a) The Finance section is one of the key components of the support services at SPF that oversees the financial
matters of SPF and ensures the organization attains its key objectives. In other words, the finance function
oversees the organizational processes at a micro level that includes:

. the key responsibility of budget preparation, management and control

. proper project budgeting and cost control,

. managing the funds for investments

. running the payroll

. claims processing and handling all expenditure of SPF

. prompt collection of all pension contributions and pension/ associated benefits are paid in time and

in tune with the regulatory requirements.

The section is also responsible for cash flow planning and monitoring. This is achieved through a system of
weekly cash flow preparation and close monitoring.

b) Financial reporting on a monthly and quarterly basis of actual against budget for the year, and meeting all
financial reporting requirements, in the requested timeframe in collaboration with the other sections, is also
an important task of this section. Monthly financial report to the Ministry of Finance and to SPF’s regulator,
PEMC are sent each month respectively and this is done on the 10th of the following month as well as a
quarterly report submitted PEMC as part of SPF's compliance commitments.

¢) The most important aspect of Finance Section’s work is the preparation of the audited financial statements
for submission to the Minister of the Ministry of Finance Trade and Economic Planning, the National Assembly
and the regulator, PEMC, before the end of March each year, as required under the SPF Act.

d) The section is pleased to record that it has fully complied to all such requirements in 2018. The audited
financial statements are also herewith enclosed in Chapter 4.

Chapter 3 | 3.3.1 | Finance | Corporate Services | Page 49



Seychelles Pension Fund

3.3.2 | INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY

a. Introduction
Information Technology is rapidly transforming the way that the financial sector is operating, and the
management and delivery of pensions is no exception.

The IT Section is committed to delivering a strategic advantage to the organization by fostering creative
and innovative use of technology, to achieve the SPF’s core objectives. This is achieved through an effective
stewardship of information technology, providing a secure, highly reliable technology infrastructure along
with high quality, customer-oriented services and support, to meet the ever-changing needs of our members
and staff.

It has great potential to render SPF's internal processes more efficient and customer friendly. Such an
approach and a heavy reliance on technology however can also create new emerging risks and one of the
major concern of the section is data protection and data security at all times.

b) IT Audit

The section undertook, in 2018, an audit consisting of reviewing the design and effectiveness of existing IT
controls over SPF’s IT equipment, software, policies and procedures. The main objective of this exercise,
done successfully, was to assess the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data as well as compliance
with policies, procedures and standards governing the SPF’s key business applications.

Based on the findings and observations made during the review, the current IT controls and practices were
rated as ‘generally compliant’ with the requirements of ISO/IEC 27001:2013. This means that the control
objectives exists but are not always being fully implemented or systematically followed. Recommendations
have been sent to management with improvements that have to be further made to mitigate the risk of
negative impact on the organization. The aim is to be fully compliant.

c) IT Risk Assessment

As part of managing the health and safety of the SPF’s IT controls, an IT risk assessment was also conducted
in 2018. The section analyzed and evaluated how likely and severe the risks were. Discussions were held
on what measures should be in place to effectively eliminate or control the risks identified. This will be
addressed in 2019, as part of the risk mitigation program.

d) Web Application
The web application is a means to provide SPF members with the details of their member accounts or their
annual statements electronically.

For the first part, the section has worked to achieve this, by using the technology driven and hassle-free
service of SMS Web Application, in order to conveniently send its members their account balance on a
quarterly basis.

Once the project is completed, members would be able to access the web application via SPF website and
obtain their current up to date statement at any time. The system would be secured, as each member would
be provided with a unique login credential. The project has been tested and presented to SPF management
and a few changes have been requested which are currently being attended to. The system is scheduled for
launch in the second quarter of 2019.
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d) System Development

The section also worked on many in-house developments, to facilitate SPF’s users, by modifying the
Operations Module, applying changes to the employer member relation file, the “importation” of Government
file to user input allocation of monthly contributions data since GOS is the largest employer, especially for
contributions from Government payroll.

New features were also added to the Benefit Module eg. Voluntary Contribution Report, Deceased member
archive, application tracking status, removal of invalid salaries, removal of temporary allocation, updating of
old and new NIN.

The complete process for application of voluntary contribution refund for members at the age of 55 years
and above was again successfully implemented.

The new feature ‘Pre-1991 member’'s employment history’ has also been concluded and deployed amongst
others. Other new IT features developed are:

Customer Relations | Designed and implemented report for members with salaries greater than any given
amount.

Compliance Module | Design and implemented vested and non-vested members master list. Many statistical
reports have been incorporated in the Compliance module.

Rent Module | The Rent Management system has been revamped in order to offers features like property
management and accounting, electronic dispatch of invoices and receipts to tenants, tenant management,
lease tracking, bank reconciliation, maintenance scheduling and reporting.

Debtors Module | A new debtors management reporting system has been put in place especially the aging
list for debtors, for both tenants and employers making contributions.

Inventory Module | The inventory and asset register was developed and SPF is now managing its inventory
through this new system, that also includes a user friendly tagging platform.

General Ledger: | The system was developed and is fully operational. It provides management with accurate,
up to date financial information in order to make short and long term business decisions.

Document Management | Documents are stored digitally at SPF since 2018, with the objective of retrieving
whenever needed. 5127 employer files have been scanned and processed. Document storage costs will be
reduced by eliminating the costs of paper and by minimizing document storage space.

IT Help Desk: | The IT section is responsible for answering the technical questions of its users. The incident

logs are transferred using e-mail. The purpose the help desk is to troubleshoot problems, provide guidance
about hardware, software, and communication.
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Apphcation Login 20% Software 30%

Email 15% Hardware 5%

Communication 10%

Internet 10M%

Parkirg 10%

f) Conclusion

Overall we enhanced the performance of most of the software deployed at SPF and we have kept the whole
ICT systems running smoothly and without fail.

Going digital ensures we can provide our customers with up-to-date information efficiently and sustainably
and allows access to details with ease. We have seen around 7,500 active members using our online self-
service and we look forward to strengthening our communications with members, employers and wider
stakeholders going forward.
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3.3.3 | MARKETING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS

a) Key Marketing and PR objectives
In line with the plans and targets for the year 2018, the marketing objectives were developed to focus on four
main areas:

* Enhancing relationship with all our stakeholders, in particular SPF members and educational campaign by
participating in fairs, work place talks, radio, TV programmes and newspaper publications.

* Increasing membership and revenue for our voluntary scheme as well as increasing membership from self-
employed sector.

* Helping in maintaining 100% occupancy of SPF’s real estate investments.

* Providing our members with up to date and latest technological means of information, especially through
maintaining the SPF website.

b) Major marketing achievements

* Brand alignment: A public relations strategy was launched in 2018, to address brand recognition, and share
correct information on SPF, because of malicious and incorrect information dissemination, by online opinion
formers and others.

This was done through a popular, * Zan mon zanmi Pansyon’, cartoon strip series. This was complemented
on TV with the recently coined slogan “Pas kot Fon Pansyon Pou en konversasyon” to ensure that SPF takes
ownership of its information dissemination, get members to know more about SPF and to educate them on
the importance of submitting all their employment history. 30 strips, targeting frequently asked questions,
were produced and published by ‘Seychelles Nation’ and ‘Today’ newspaper for six months in 2018.

» Workplace Information Sessions: These were revamped to incorporate Workplace In-House clinics, which
is “live” data and records of the workers, targeting shift workers and the otherwise difficult to access groups.

* TV promotion: SPF signed a six months contract with SBC for advertisements. A total of 4 adverts were
produced to support the 2018 brand alignment PR strategy namely “Ou lenvestisman papa” which puts into
perspective how SPF’s investment benefits its members. “Goal”, an advert targeting self-employed workers
during the world cup campaign, “Tyeke advert” aimed at pulling members through the communication channel
to keep up to date with their accounts and the members statement of account advert.

* Advertising: SPF also engaged in a host of collaborative advertising campaigns throughout 2018 which
includes the Global Money week which targeted the Youths, Job Innovation Fairs on Mahe and Praslin,
National Day Fair, presentation of Artbooks to Mont Fleuri Secondary school, Bois De Rose Fair, promotion
of World family day in conjunction with the Ministry of Family Affairs, Outreach program at Orion Mall and
Financial Education Campaign in partnership with the Central Bank.
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+ National Day participation: SPF's stall with a “Snakes and Ladder” game was a big hit at the National Day
Stall. The main objective of participating in the National Day Fair was to promote voluntary contributions from
the expected large crowds visiting the fair, whilst promoting SPF’s services and conditions through the life
size snake and ladders game. Again we recorded mass participation and the event contributed significantly
to the increase of voluntary contributions that increased by SCR 3million in 2018, with a record additional
contributions of 1,799 members.

» Workplace information sessions: A total of 33 workplace meetings were held for 2018, which included
repeated sessions in some workplaces.

* Website: SPF’s website was revamped and updated regularly with monthly performance reviews. Alongside
the SPF Facebook profile, we now have a Facebook page, a Youtube account, a Twitter account and an
Instagram account to widen the scope of our online presence, with social media taking over the means of
communications with the young population.

* Use of telephone for advertising: With our IT Section and an outsourced company- Maven, we have
completed a Web and SMS based application to feature as an independent and website application where
member can in real time get updates on their account at SPF. The application is to be launched in 2019.

» Match - It —scheme: SPF had two new employers joining the scheme in 2018.
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3.3.4| HUMAN RESOURCES & ADMINISTRATION

As part of its continued effort in order to obtain optimum efficiency and effectiveness in the work place, the
Human Resources & Administration section persist in its effort to promote the right organization functions
in terms of the right staffing, providing a supportive working environment, promoting ethical conduct and

strengthening mechanisms for the management and ensuring proper staff development of SPF throughout
2018.

a) Recruitment

There are four divisions and fourteen sections, whereby majority of its key staff have already reached
professional level in their respective fields. More so with the implementation of the new structure, this has
resulted in the creation of new positions, which has been mainly filled internally, through succession planning.

SPF continues to upkeep an ideal working environment by staying in tune with its staff members, which further
contributes to enhance employee morale and in turn propel motivation, commitment and engagement. SPF
has been able to maintain a very low staff turnover for the period under review.

®

2017 Staff Count 2018

The workforce has expanded from 122 employees as of December 2017 to 130 employees which represents
a percentage growth of 7% in workforce. Recruitment has been mainly in the Finance, IT, Investment, Human
Resources & Administration and Compliance section.

A total of 11 vacancies have been filled for 2018 as compared to 12 in 2017.
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Percentage of Staff turnover | recorded resignations for 2017 and 2018

2017 2018

b) Training

Training is considered to be vital, in particular for staff development and professional growth. To achieve this,
a succession training plan is available and is reviewed on a yearly basis. The training plan is for a period of
five years. For 2018 the plan has been updated based on the current training needs and availability of funds.

From January to December 2018, 96% of employees benefited from both internal and external training.

This ranged from local and overseas, workshops, meetings, short and long term professional courses. The
percentage in 2017 was 41%.

m 2017
W 2018
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c¢) Annual staff meeting and team bonding

In line with empowering our workforce and promoting team work to render the organization more effective
and efficient in its undertakings, SPF organized its second team bonding activity in 2018 alongside its annual
general staff meeting, which was a great success with the participation of 79% of its workforce.

d) Staff Incentives
SPF continues to provide a wide range of incentives, shown below, to its staff members which in turn
contributes to good work performance and a high retention rate:

* Relevant training

* Flexi-time

*  Uniform

« Staff loans ( stopped effective 18th December 2018, as per National Assembly’s ruling when the new
amendments to SPF’'s Act were passed)

e) Performance Management

Great importance is placed on performance management in order to obtain the ideal working environment
whereby productivity can be measured. Through the annual general staff meeting and monthly management
meetings, set plans and targets along with Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the year are discussed,
whereby achievements and constraints are reviewed.

f) Amongst other parameters considered to maintain an effective and efficient workplace are:

+ Employees having cleared defined objectives

« Alignment of SPF's goal to the activity

+ Cost management

* Open communication

* Yearly reviewing of SPF's policies

+ Employee appraisals conducted on a yearly basis

« Achievement of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

From January to December the following have been updated and implemented:

+ Staff loan policy

* Succession training plan
* Emergency Loan Policy
* Employee handbook

* Remuneration policy

* Travel policy

* Health & Safety Policy

g) Providing a supportive environment and promoting ethical conductSPF continues to put a lot of emphasis
in maintaining the right working environment which contributes to its positive growth.
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h) Administration

In line with its administrative functions, the section continues to extend its support by providing means and
ways to improve on the previous year’s performance and mitigate all risks. Inevitably, as a result of our nature
of business and the continued increase in activity, the administrative cost continues to augment in order to
cope with new occurrences and projects.

i) Comparison of administrative costs with membership, investment income
(without fair value / provisions / depreciation) and net assets over 5 years.

2013 2014 \NCRTE‘ASE 2015 INC;R/EASE 2016 \NCREASE 2017 INCREASE 2018 \NCREASE

Administrative cost
(SCR'm)

20.6 3%

Active members 38,117 -5%
Cost per active
member (SCR)

556 9%

Investment Income

(SCR'm) 0

89

Total Net

Asset (SCR) 18%

j) Administrative cost as a percentage of other income and net assets

2015 2016

Cost per active
member (SCR)

Cost as a % of
investment income

Cost as a % of
total net assets

An increase of 7% was observed in administrative cost for 2018 which reflects an increase in workforce and
increase in wages, through increment and promotion of staff members, along with gratuity payment during
the year 2018, having a new organisation structure from 2017.

k) Comparison of administrative costs over 6 years
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I) Employee satisfaction
SPF undertook an employee satisfaction survey in October 2018 and the results as shown below rated 71%
of the staff being satisfied with the management of SPF, 72% content with work goals having been clearly

defined, 84% encouraged to participate and share ideas and 92 % happy with their responsibilities at SPF.

Summary of findings- Employee satisfaction survey 2018
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m) Training
96% of staff were trained in 2018, through workshops/courses/personal development sessions/profession-
al and long term degrees, in-house specific tragettted training sessions, as well as overseas ISSA courses.
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Tables showing Summary of training
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3.3.5 | RISK MANAGEMENT & RESEARCH

a) Introduction
Today all modern pension systems and the majority of financial institutions are equipped with a risk
management unit.

In addition to instilling a risk based management framework in SPF, the section also ensures compliance
with all laws and supervisory authorities, monitors the latest developments and reforms in pension plans,
conducts research on ways to further improve on SPF's performance, ensures SPF meets its obligations
related to pension development and reporting requirements as outlined in the SPF Act 2005, and responsible
for the actuarial evaluation.

b) SPF Risk Management policy and Risk Register

One of the most significant accomplishments of the section was the completion of the internal Risk Register
in March 2018. Upon its completion the Register along with the Risk Management Policy were shared with
the regulatory body, PEMC.

Half way through the year, upon the strong recommendation of the new Board of Trustees, specifically the
Audit and Risk Committee, an independent external service provider (Price Water and Coopers Ltd -Mauritius)
was awarded a contract to prepare an independent Risk Register which would include Strategic Risks for the
Board of Trustees which did not form part of the original register prepared in-house.

The section organized the provision of preliminary data to PWC and supported the subsequent on site work
which took place from 27th August 2018 to 7th September 2018 which focused on the collection of data
from all sections as well as the Board of Trustees.

The section prepared an in-depth comparison of the in-house register and that of PwC revealing great
similarities in terms of the methodology, layout and the top ten risks identified. The Risk Register will now be
used with the necessary software to monitor and mitigate all of SPF’s risks on a quarterly risk management
reporting system, to the Management and Board of Trustees, effective 2019.

c) National Assembly — Review of amendments to SPF Act

The section spearheaded the process of preparing and drafting the amendments to SPF Act, 2005. This
process culminated in the National Assembly deliberating the proposed amendments which were well
received and a number of additional amendments were submitted to SPF.

In October 2018, the Bills Committee met with SPF, the Ministry of Finance, Trade and Economic Planning
and the Attorney General’s Office to finalise the proposals ahead of a final review by the National Assembly.
The SPF Amendment Bill 2018 was adopted by the National Assembly in December 2018 and subsequently
assented by the President in the same month.

d) Access to Information Act 2018

With the coming into force of the Access to Information Act, 2018 the section was identified as the focal
point for information in view that the Act made provisions for organizations such as SPF to identify and
nominate a person who does not hold the responsibility for Public Relations and Communications. This role
was entrusted to the section to bridge the gap between the information and the public and press.

The section will now undertake the development of an internal Implementation Plan, an Information Manual/

Scheme and the setting up a reporting system. The section maintains a tweeter account to allow the |10 to
share certain information with the general public.
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e) World Bank Training for SPF Staff on use of PROST Software

The section organized the visit of Mrs. Anita Schwartz from the World Bank, whereby staff were provided
with a refresher training on the use of the Pension Reform Options Simulation Toolkit commonly referred
to as the PROST Software. It is a computer-based toolkit to simulate pension systems over a long time-
frame and it supports the World Bank pension policy dialogue in client countries.

The software also makes the modeling of pension reforms relatively fast and easy. At the end of training,
15 staff members received their license to operate the software.

f) Analysis of SPF actual performance in comparison to projections of the Actuary

The section on numerous occasions compared the actual performance of SPF to projections of Actuary
for the benefit of Management and the Board of Trustees.

The analysis touched on the rate of inflation, the wage growth, the population dynamics, number of retir-
ees, contributions, pensions, net assets worth and the rate of returns on investments.

g) Recruitment of Actuary for SPF

Works to identify an Actuary for SPF was initiated in 2018, where three quotations were sought. This in-
cluded preparing a relevant ToR which corresponded to the actual needs of SPF and the overall objective
of the Actuarial Valuation in line with the provisions of the SPF Act 2005.

Other considerations included the provision of training and capacity building to ensure that a proper
framework to support the actuarial assessment would be in place within the SPF organizational structure.
Proposals received were directed to the Board of Trustees for a choice to be made, and the approved
Actuary has now been engaged to begin the actuarial evaluation in 2019.

h) Legal support

The section also monitors and provides support in regards to legal matters of SPF. This includes ensuring
SPF has legal representation and a report is submitted to provide an update on progress. This concerns
primarily Rent Board cases. In 2018, SPF had one case of spouse pension before the Supreme court that
had no financial implications, as the spouse pension was stopped.

i) International cooperation

The section ensures the international partnerships of SPF with organisations such as ISSA, ILO, World
Bank and financial institutions such as TDB and AFREXIM Bank are maintained and request for informa-
tion are attended to in a successful and speedy manner.

Such partnerships results in the provisions of training opportunities, participation in local and internation-
al seminars. The section also provides writes up on the current pension systems and responds to queries
from such organisations.
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3.4 | INTERNAL AUDIT

3.4.1 Introduction

SPF’s Internal Audit Section reports functionally to the Board’'s Audit and Risk Committee as well as
administratively to CEO of SPF, in order to fulfill its responsibilities independently and objectively. Internal
Audit’s main role is to provide independent assurance that SPF’s risk management, governance and internal
control processes are operating effectively.

It also provides audit assurance to Management and the Board of Trustees that sound and adequate internal
controls exist in the SPF, and promotes a good governance culture and compliance with all laws, regulations,
procedures and guidelines, which in turn enhances public confidence.

Audit follow up is also carried out to ensure audit queries are answered and corrective action have been taken
by management. 90% of the audit queries have been addressed by management for the year 2018.

In addition to verification of all payment of pension applications and projects, prior to disbursement, this
section carried out 7 audits in 2018 as follows:

a) Praslin/ La Digue Offices

b) Revenue Collection and Banking

c) Non-Payroll Expenditure

e) Audit of Property Management (Rental)
f) Audit of Car Park Facilities

g) Audit of Management Contracts

h) Members Fund Accounts

2018 also saw Price Waterhouse and Coopers Ltd (PWC) of Mauritius undertake a review of the Internal Audit

section and helped the Section with the preparation of an internal audit plan and charter, as well as provide
guidance for the section and its staff.

Chapter 3 | 3.4 | Internal Audit | Page 64



Annual Report 2018

CHAPTER 4 | BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT

4.1 BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT
4.2 AUDITOR GENERALS REPORT
4.3 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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SEYUHELLES PENSION FUND
BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT

The Board of Trustes of the Seychelles Pension Fund is pleased to present its report together with the Audiioes repart and the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2008, As per the SPF Act, the snnual repart is presentad 1o the
Matinnal Assensbly and published in the (Ticial Gasetie.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Seychelles Petsion Scheme commenced {8 operstions under the Seychelles Pension Scheme Act, 1990, CAF 220 wiily effect

from January 1, 1991, In August 2008, the Seychelles Pension Scheme Act, 1990 was repealed and was replaced by Sevchelles
Pension Fund Act, 200% unider which the schems bocime a statute body and was renamed as Seychelles Pension Fund

REGISTERED OFFICE OF SEYTHELLES PENSION FUND

The regastered offie of Seychelles Pension Fund is at Camavalle House, second floor, PO Bax 376, Vietorin, Mahe, Sevchdles.

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Sepchelles Pension Fumd is 9o collece contribution from membess and pay bepefits b retiring members.
It includes payment of miomtaly pension 1o pensioners and thedr dipendenis of the deceased members, as well as other henefis
under varicas schemes & per Scetion 4 of the At and applicable Regulations

R stnied

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR e 217

SCR SCR
Surplas brought forwand - #9,805,931
Restatgment for salary = {1411,169)
Amartisason of deferved Government Cirant {restaicisent) - L0g 80
Surplus For the yesr 147 940,600 #H.503.442
Fuir valiss adjustments transfiored o other reserves - 6, T, T T30
Price vear sdjustment on salue on imvestmend propetics
acquirsd from Governminl (ressatement) - (B0 79, 684
Retzined susples brought forward B9, A97, R TEE TS0
Retalmed surplus carvied farward E—i'.fﬂﬂ 509,457

INTEREST ON MEMBERS' FUND

Interest rale for the period 0100 2018 w 3000.30018 was 2.5%. &s ot 0110020018 , new inderest cotes of 4.81% and 5.50% for
mandaiory and veduniary coatributions respectively were approved as per a new palicy for interest crediced to members. Thds took
uffiect from 01, 102008 after the approval of the Mislsier of Finance as per the Acl. The rates sre hased con 12 month average 91
duys amd 365 days Treasury Bills rate respoctively for the previons year end 20017, as published by Central Bask OF Seychelles
(2007 3.5%),

FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Seychelles Pension Fend acquired propeny and equipment amoenting to SCR 2.5 m during the vear, comprising of farmiune,
fittings and mator vehicle (2017: SCR | 4m)

The Board is of the apinion that the fair value of property and squipment as at Decembser 21, 2018 does nat differ mabanially from
thesr casrving amounts as per the statements of net azsete available for benefits an that dare,

INVESTMENT FROPERTIES

Seyehelles Pension Fund hus invested substantial amount in propertics for rental and capital appreciation papeses, As at
Degember 51, 2018, these wtaled SCR 144k (20017; SCHR1.3%5), Draring the year, additions amounad 1o SCR 35.4m (2017
ECR 49%m). The set fair vilue incresse on investment propenties as at December 311, 2008 amounts to SCR B.7m (217 nil).

Chapter 4.1 | Board of Trustees Report | Page 67



Seychelles Pension Fund

SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
BIARD OF TRUSTEES' REPRT (CONT'D)

BOARD OF TRUSTEE®

Thie Brard of Trastees sinee the date of the last repom and the date of this repart are:

Jacquelin Dugasse- Chairman (From 15th September 2018) Maldka Jivan (From Febnaary 2015)
Edhwin Palmer-Chainman (From 15t March 201 8- 17tk September 2018)  Antoice Robinson {From Febnaary 2013)
Patrick Payei-Chaimman {From July M3 1o February Z00HE) Brenda Morim (From |51 March 201%)
Pairick Payet {From Fehraury 2018] Poter Sinon (Froen [t March 2008)
Linmsben Woodonck {From Jangary 2006 to February 2008) Elsie Bowed { From | st Manch 20187
Walkr Lahrosse {Septemher 2014 to Fehruary 2008) Cimily Vot { From | st Mareh 2018)
Suzanme Labrosse{From Jasuary 2006 o Febnaary 3018) Bernard Adenis (From Fdaruary 20153
Amtomia Lucas (From Awgust 2000 w0 February 2008) Faxi Yakment (From §st barch 2018)
Elizabieth AgaihineFroen February 2015 1o February 2018) Cillin Mangroo (From Jamuary 2005}

Alexandm Madelane From Febmasry 2017 b February 2018}
Mlarie-Claire Marie (Frosm Aupust 200 7)

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Trustees s nesponsible for the overall management of ke affamrs of Seychelles Pension Fund. The Board also
ensures {hal proper accounts and other books aml records in rekatiom thersio are maintmined. In preparing these financial
statements, the Board has 3 general respomsibiliny wr

- ensure that the financial statements are on the godng comcem basis unless it is (sappropriabe W assume continvance of the
Funad,
selert sustable aceoanting policies and then apply them consistenily;
meake judpment and estimaies that s regsonable asd prudent asd:
dizclose and exploin any matersal departures from mpplicable accounting standards,

The Chief Executive Officer of Seychellis Pension Fund is, as defined m the Seychelle: Pengion Fund Agt, 2005, responisible for
the day 1o day adeinistration. mckading the collection of contribuetions, payment of peisions amd cther benefits, investment of
surplus monies and accountimg for a1l monies eolbocted, pasd or invested by he Seychedles Pension Fund.

The Board and ke Chief Executive Officer also have the general responsibility fior saking reasonable sheps 1o safeguand the assets
of SPF and detert frawd and other imvegularities

The Board and the Chaef Executive Officer consider they have met their atoresaid respomsahilities,

AUDITORS

The Auditor General of Seychelles is mandwed so camy oul e mdit of the Sevchells Pension Fund under Section 35(2) of the
Seychelles Pensioa Furad Act, 2005, They hme outsourced the serviees to Pool and Patel for the year HE.

Ravi Vali Antodnie Robinson
5
Elsie Maorel

_Elmeel
WA G

Y] ivan

Eillia Mangroo

Date: | 02 2014
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Office of the Auditor General
Ird Floor, Block C, Unity House
O Victora, Repuhlic of Seychelles
Telephone: 248-4672500 Email: ausditgen @oag.sc

Wiebsite: www.oag.sc Facebook: OAG Seychelles

Please address all correspondence to the Auditor Gemeral

OPINION OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Opinion

The accompanying financial statements of the Seychelles Pension Fund, set aut
on pages 7 to 45, which comprise of the statement of assets available for benefits
as at 31 December 2018, the statement of income and expenditure of members'
account, statement of income and expenditure on investments, and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, have been audited on my
behalf by Pool and Patel auditors, appointed under section 19 of the Auditor
General Act, 2010 read with Section 53(2) of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act,
2005 as amended. As per the agreament with the auditors, they have reported to
me the results of their audit and on the basis of their report, | am satisfied that all

information and explanations which, to the best of my kn owledge and belief, where
necessary for the purpose of the audit have been obtained.

Accordingly, in my opinion,

(a) proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as it appearad
from examination of those records: and

(b} the financial statements on pages 7 to 45 present fairly, in all material aspects,
the financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2018 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordanee with
the applicable International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with
the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 as amended.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing (15Ag). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor-General's responsibilities for the audit of financial staternents’ section
of my report. | am independent of the Fund in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), together with other ethical requirements that are
relevant to the audit of financial statemenits in Seychelles. | believe that the audit
evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my epinion
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Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for the Financial Statements of the
Fund

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statermnents that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Seychelles
Pension Fund Act, 2005 as amended and for such internal control as the Board of
Trustees determine, is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for
assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the Board of Trustees either intends to liquidate the Fund or
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so

Responsibilities of the Auditor General

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
ta fraud or error and igsue an auditor's report in accordance with the Seychelles
Pension Fund Act, 2005 as amended. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of the audit in accordance with 15As, the auditor exercises professional
judgement and maintains professional scepticism throughout the audit. The
auditor also;

» |dentifies and assesses that risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the opinion. The risk of
not detecting matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omission or misrepresentation, or the override of internal
control;

= obtains an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Board of Trustees' intermnal control;

« evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Trustees;
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« concludes on the appropriateness of the Board of Trustees' use of going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
concludes whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the fund's ability to
continue as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that a material
uncertainty exists, the auditor iz required to draw attention in the
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. My
conclusions are based on audit evidence obtained to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future unforeseeable events or conditions
may cause the fund to cease to continue as a going concemn;

» evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

« communicates with the Board of Trustees among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that are identified
during the audit.

Gamini Herath 22 March 2019
Auditor General Victoria, Seychelles

4ii)
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P‘Dﬂl & Pate I Malsan La Roslére, PO Bax 117, Victoria, Mahé, Seychelles.

Telk: +248 4323201 Fax: +248 4323518
Chartered Accou

ntants o il Roa@sevchelisinat WWebaite: WV MRDRETEARhEns.com
Bernard L. Pool FCA Suketu Patel FCA Gémma Roberts FCCA wwEsolandpatsl.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Opinken

We have sudited the financial sinicments of Seychelles Pension Fund oa pages 7 to 45, which comprise
the statement of m=t assets avablable for benefits as a1 31 December, 2018, the satement of income and
expenditure on investments, the fund account sttement, and the staserment of cash flows for the year then
exdded, and motes 1o the financial statemesits, including 2 summary of significant accounding policics and
ather explanaiony informution, The financial ssmements have been preparsd by menagement in complisnce
with |micmational Finassial Reporing Standands.

mmpanlnmmlulyrﬁurlhaudimﬂnuﬂluumdmcvﬂmmhﬁhthmMqum.
005, Our awdit work has been undeninken so that we might sate 1o the Auditer General thase manors
which we are required to state so bim in accordence with our costract sad for so other parpose. To ke
fallest m-mtpmlnnﬂhth,mdnmwwmmmmrhmoﬂu:ﬂ'u.nm:.ﬁndhw
Cieneral for our eudit work, for this report or tse opinion we have formed.

In our opindon, the accompanying (inanciz] statements of Seychelles Pension Fund s¢i 0wt on pages T W@
44 peesent fairly, in all mascrial respects, the financizl positica of the Fund as at 31 December, 2018, and
ins financiad performance and its cask flows for the year then ended partly in accordance with the reporting
peovision of ihe Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 and the Imermational Financial Reponing Standands.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in sccordance with Inicrmational Standards on Auditing (15As). Cur
responsibilifics under thase standards are farther deseribed in the Auditor's Resporsibilities for the Awdit
of the Finaneial Stntements seetion of our repart. Wi are indcpendent of the Fund in accordence with the
cihicsl requirements that ere relevant 10 our sudit of the financisl staicments in Soychelles, and we have
fulfilled our other eshical responsibilities In secordance with these requirements. Wi belicve: that the audit
avidenoe we have obtained i sufficicnt and appropriase 1o provide & basis for our apinbon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged wilh Governance for ihe Financinl Statements

Maragement is responsible for the preparstbon and fair presenintion of the fnancial satements in
accardamee with requirements of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2003, ond for such imernal contro] as
management delermines is necessary 1o enable the prepamtion of financial statements that are fres from
mzicrial misstasement, whelber due to fraud or erros.

In preparing the fisancial stmtements, management is responsible for esseasing ibe Fund's ability 1o
continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using the going
concern basis of necounting unless management cither iniends to liquidate the Fund or 1o ccxse opersians,
or has no reslktie alternative bt v do so.

The Board of Tnastees are responsible for oversceing the Fund's financial reporting process,

5

MOORE STEPHEMNS

An Indrpendeat member Brm of Mours Sicpheas Internatbonal Lisdicd - members be princpal clibss teougheut e woeld,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT (Continued)
SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Chr objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 8 whole ase
froe from material misstatement, whether due to freud or erroe, and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guaramtes that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect o matedal misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basiz of these
financial statemenis.

We have no relationship with, or material interest in the Fund or its subsidiary other than in our capacity
ns awditors and arm’s length dealings with the Fund in the ordinary eowurse of business.

An wudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amount and disclosures in the
firancial statements and that these are in accordance with the accounting records maintaimned by tha
management. The procedures selected depends on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud and error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the puspose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity”s internal
control. An andit also includes evaluating the appropristencss of accounting polices used and the

reasonablences of acoounting estimates made by manngement, as well as evaluating the owerall
presentation of the financinl statcments.

@ TAMAINALE

POOL & PATEL 5,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Li 0% .2l W
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUMD

STATEMENTS OF ASSETS AVAILARLE FOR BEXEFITS - 315T DECEMBER 218

ASAETS

MNan-cErrent nsseis

Property and efjuipmend
Investment properises

Dreposit on leasehald Tand
Irvestietl in subsidiary
Invastment in sssvcisies- Ssvbrew

Investment in associates- Al Salam Bank

Investment in financial assels
Loan to PMC

Current aseils

Inwestment in financial axsets
Receivables and prepayments
Loan to PRC

Cnsh amd cash equiivalends

Total aseeis

Current Hability
DOiher payables

Mon-eurvent Hnhility
Retiremient benedic obligations
Deferred Govemment Graml

Met nssers availabie for benefits

Made up az follows;
Member's fund
(e Tiand

Reserve funds

Dther rederves
Retained eammimgs

Valwation of net asweds against aciuarial value of promised retivement bonefits

Met Asseis Value

Addditional fand required foon conmbution recelvedinvesrment

Present value of defined revivement besefit {Actuariol Estimates)

Vested Ben=fit
Mon-Vested Benefit
Tota) Relirement Benedit

HRfer tn explamation on nafe 17 on page 41

Be statid

MNodes JIE 07

SR SR
& 35,751,062 3366251
7 1,441,030.578 1,396 342 857
& 4%, 170,103 43 hES 367
] d4 4736 024 44 A28 b4
11 58,539,268 215,449,350
11 21836581 20973220
1 367,835 607 93 127,730
1 123,970, 525 :
1,536,567 850 2,153,503, 41
11 573,231 984 324,083,534
12 &1, 080,144 & LEG L Ep
13 14,785,813 -
26 a7 557 640 220,146 4%
Tho G0, THS S84 416,214
3,103,264 635 1A%, 009,255

14  21,68%.241 17,676,666
15 6,231,559 4,741 02%°
1] 6,744,074 6,352 754
19 3,068, 503,761 EEETHIMS
17 1,521 918, 474 1,417,563,3403
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The nodes os pages 11 to 45 form am ingegral part of tkese financial srasementa,

Aupdivar's Bepart are on pages 1 106
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Annual Report 2018

Compalsory comributions:
- by emplayess

- by emplayers

Viluntary contribulisns

- by employvees

= by englovers

iMilher Incoms

Intezest received by mambers
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Mgl smplus For the vear from investments
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= Morenal Retirement
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= Pre-Migration Eetirement
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- Children Pension
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- Posl-Retirement Children Persion
« Early Retirement Benefiis

= Voduntary retirement fump asm
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Less:

- Adjestmss (recomedling)

- Socinl Secarity Fund Pension from ASP

Taotal Expenditure
Excess comtribution aver henefits paid

Adyustment: Prios year deferred lease

Adjustment- Sakaries and amoriisation (restated)

Owverall surplas for the ye- net increase in asests available for

benefits
Balasse at January I,

Balanee ps al December 31,
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The notes on pages L1 i 45 form anintegral part of these financial statenesie.

Audrioe's Report ane om pages 3 o6
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INCDNE
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Investment’ Dividend income
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Amanisatian of deferred Government Grank

EXPENIMTURE
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Auditors remuneration
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The maies an pages 11 i 45 fomn an mtegral par of these fisncial statements.

Audilnr's Repoet are om pages 3 ta 6
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUNIY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED 11ST DECEMBER 2018

Hi stated
Moles I0IA a7
SCH SCH

Cazh genernted from operatians
Mel nereage in nssets available for benefiis _ 250,864,557 191,166,513
Met cash generated from operations 150,804,957 191,166,533
Adjirsrments for:
Drepreciaton of property and equipmont & 0043 247 6,045,524
Amortisatan of dsposi on lease i 515464 15,464
Amaortisation on deferred Govermment Grani 6 i DO SR (LR GEO)
(Profifylass an disposal of plas and sguipment 1548931 (64271)
Gain oo transfer of property plant and equapivess - (342078
Rent surcharge written ofT (1,647,613 -
Fenrement benelii chligations 15 1,450,531 QT 150
Effect af foreign exchange i linanclal assets 5018214 (3§ 482,061)
Provision for bed debis 13 L1041, 128 =
Fair valug gains on imvestmem propenics K 1K, B51,320) (00 5440
Fair value gains an PPE (213,769} -
Fair value gain on quoisd equities {54.600,012) -
Fair walse gain on unguotal equities 1507, 75% -
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Fair vabue paines on associabes 0 (43 546,779 {16, 573,030
Met change in Exir valise on financial asseis - 23] K17
[terest recervable I (44, 100, 740) (4T.528.062)
Diwidend imcoma F | [14.043,439) (14,145, 034)
Effiest of change im exchange rates 1,121,421 (4,892,801

100,732,220 e 043,724
Chiasges 1 working capilal:
- Decr=asal Increase) in receivables and propaymiends (¥94.158) (L1,833,65%
- {Decreasel/ Increase in payables and aceruals 1.004.573 1,570,976
el cash (mflow from eperations 113,846,644 54681041
Cnsh Bows from imvesting activities
Purchase of property and sguipment fi [2.477.401) (1,373,254)
Purchase of investment properines 7 {35,440 506} (48,9 00,439)
Deferred Gavernment Graml I (0 1 A34) 061,434
Proceeds from disposal of property ard equipment - 167,990
Lagn te FMC I3 4 1 50000 ATy =
Purchase of financial nssets (574,130,704) (407,714,756}
Procesds from redemption of fisancial assets 471,557,438 4B 410610
[nierest received 12 44,101,740 A7 828,062
Dividend received 23 14, 043430 14,149,084
Met eash outflow Trem |svesting activitles (230,51 6.918) S1E18. 737
Mt (decrease)increass in cash and cash equivalents {125,670,274) 147,199,778
Effect of change in exchange rates 3140 4,802,891
Cash and cash squivalents a1 Jamsary 1, 21, | 44,494 M
Cash and cash equivalents ai Decembsr 31, 265 ¥7.397.640 _w_

The metes on pages 11 w0 45 form an imegral part of these financial statements.

Auditor's Repon are an pagea 3 fe
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1. Greneral Tmfoarmation

Seychelles Pension Fund was established by the “Seychelles Pension Act, 20057, Seychelles Pension Fund is domiciled
in the Republic of Seychelles and the address of i registered office is F.O Box 576, Caravelle House, Victoria, Mahe
Sevchelles.

The last Acmarial Report from Acteary Price Waterhouse Coopers is for the year 2016 and it details significant actuarial
pssumptions and projections as well as, the actuanal present valse of promised retirement benefits and the present value
of Sevchelles Pension Fund. The next Actuaral vahsation ia due in 2019,

Investments of the Penston Fund as required by Part VII of the "Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 are disclosed in
the notes 1o the financial statements

These financial statements will be laid before the Wational Assembly and published in the Official Gazette in acoordance
with Section 55 of the Sevchelles Pension Fund Act, 2003,

2 Funding policy

The overnding principle of the Seychelles Pension Funding policy is that contributions are increased i a steady and
phased mannser as recommended by Sevchelles Pension Fund's Actuary by Sevchelles Pension Fund and excess funds
mivested o vield maximum retums on the assets maiching Seychelles Pension Fund's linbilities. In other words, funds
which are not required for current benefit payments and administration expenses ane invesied to provide refums to assist
in sustaining the Seychelles Pension Fund in the medium to long-term. As at 31122018, Sevchelles Pension Fund had
67% of its members below the age of 45 which means that Seychelles Pension Fund can mvest 67% of its funds as it
only needs to meet the long term ligbilities of these members after 15 years.

3. Valuation af Sevehelles Pension Fund

Under Section 55 of the Sevchelles Pension Fund Act 2005, the Board of Trustees is required o make an actuanal
evaluation of s assets and lisbilities every 3 years, The latest actuarial review report was at December 31, 2016. See
details of actuary evaluation in Note 19.

(i} Type of pension system

Seychelles Pension Fund operates o poy-as-you-go, a solidarity between generations, what the generation of today pays
for retirees of today and children will pay for temorrow's retinees,

i PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopied m the preparation of these financinl statements are set out below, Changes in
the: preparation method and accounting policies kave been specified in 4ia) Basis of preparation and 4(b) Changes in
accounting policy below,

(u} Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of Seychelles Pension Fund comply with the “Public Enterprise Monitoring Commission Agt,
2013" and have been prepared in accordance with Inlemational Financial Reposting Standards (IFRS). The Financial
Suatements have been prepared under the historical cost concept, excepd as disclosed in the accounting policies below,

Seychelles Pension Fund adopied the IFRS 10 consolidation exempsion with regards o ‘investment entities” with a date
of initial application of | January 2017. Seychelles Pension Fund believes that a class of entity {an investment entity)
uses a different business model to most other entities. [t manages all of its investments on a fair value basis, whether
they are simple mvestments, associates or controlled. Tt provides fair value information to 15 wsers, and that fair value
information is more weefiil for d-EI:hﬁﬁrL-mnkmg than consolidated information. Seyvchelles Pension Fund further nosed
that preparing consalidated financial statements for such entities could hinder users” ability to assess their financial
position and results; this is because consolidated financial statements emphasise the financial position, operations and
cash fow of their investess, rather than those of the entitias themselves,

11
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

IFES 10 requires an entity that is a parent to present consolidated financial statements, The amendment provides a limited
scope exceplion io parents that are ‘investment entities”. If the entity is an invesiment entity under the standard, it is
exempt from conzolidating underlying investees that it controls; instead. it is required to account for deese subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or koss under IFRS 9, *Financial instruments",

The consolidased financial statemenis are presented in Sevchelles Rupees (SCR) and all values ha
up excepl when otherwise indicatad. potisl i Rups b and all values have not been rounded

The standard defines an investment entity as, “an entity that:

» obtains funds from ome or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with investment
MANagement services,

* commits to its invesiors that its business purpose is wo invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income o both; and

#  Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investmenis on a f2ir valuee hasis,

For an entity to qualify as an investment entity it must meet the above definition. The entity must also consider the
fellowing 1ypical characteristics of an investment entity:

¢  holding more than one investmend;

e  having more than one invesior;

» having investors that are not the entity's relased parties; and

»  Having ownership interests in the form of equity or similar inferests,

As it stands the very purpose of o pension fund is to sccumulate contributions from both employers and employees and
o invest these funds for investment retums (both capital appreciation and investmient income) asd to distribule these
refurna once s members reach the age requirements in annuity until death.

The Board has found that the Seychelles Pension Fund complies with all the definitions of an investment entity and
posscases all the charactenistics of an investment entily; namely:

pension fund holds variows financial asset investments;

Beychelles Pension Funds mvestors include all Sevchellois-emploved residents:
while Seyehelles Pension Fund may have a few members who are related to Seychelles Pension Fund, this is
purely incidental since Seyelellea Pension Fund supports, by definiton, all Sevchellois residents and this does
il affect udutrp]i..ﬂ.ﬂr\t with thas chamctenstia:

¢ The members have ownership interests in Sewvchelles Pension Fund represented by the Member's fund
displayed in equity under the Statement of Financial Position,

In applving the mvestment entity exemption, the following subsidiary will cease to be consolidated from 31 December

2014,
Subasdiary: Opportunity Investment Company Limited

(b} Changes in sipnificant accounting policies

The Company has imitially applied [FES 15 from | January 2018 Howewver there was so significant impact on Financial
Statements on adoption. Due o the transition methods chosen by Sevchelles Pension Fund in applying these standards
amd ymmateality of the implication, comparative information throughout these Financial Statements has not besn
restated to reflect the mmpact of the new standards on adoption,

12
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

IFRS 15 Hevenue from Contracts with Customeers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining how much and when revenue is recognised. Tt replaced
{A%S 1E Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations, Under IFRS 15, revenue s recognised when
a customer obiains conirol of the goods or services. Determining the tming of the transfer of control - at a pomt in time
or over lime ~ requires judgament.

The adoption of TFRS 15 did not have amy significant effect on the Sevchelles Pension Fund “s Financial Statements.

{¢) IFES 9- Financial Instrimenis

Seychelles Pension Fund adopted TFRS @ Financial Instruments issued in .Iutl_;{ 2014, early since | January 2017. The
ﬁquimmcnm of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recopnition and
easurCIment.

L Classification of freancial assels and fioaneial labilities

The classification of financial assers under IFRS 9 is penerally based on the business model in which a financial asset s
managed and = contractual cash flow characteristics.

Finaneial Assets; Classification, subseguent measarement and goins and loxses

Om ininal recognition, a financial asset is classified 88 measured at amortised cost; FWOCT = debt invessment; FVIOCT
— gqquity instrument; or FYTPL.

Financial assats are not reclassified subsequent te their initial recopnition unkess Sevehelles Pension Fund changes s
business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in the business maodel.,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 1= not designated as al
FWTPL:

- itis held within a business mode] whose objective i wo hold assets to collest contraciual cash flows; and

Its contractual terms give rise on gpecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount culstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as a1 FVTPL:

it is hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

= Its contractual terme give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

O initial recognition of an equity fvestement that is not held for rading, Seyvchelles Pension Fund may imevocahly elect
to present subsequent changes in the imvestment’s fair value in OCL This clection is made on an investment-by-
investment basis,

All financial assets not elassified as measored at amortized cost of FYOCL s desenibed abave are measured st FYWTRL,
On initial recogaition, Seychelles Pension Fund may irevocably designate a financial asset that otherwdse meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCH as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significant)y reduces
amn accouniing mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Fincncial assets; Businew model assessaent

Sevchelles Pension Funkd makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial assat is held

at a portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management
The information considared includes:

i3
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

- The seated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those polizies in practice. Thess
include whether manogement’s strategy focuses on carning contractual infersst income, maintaiming a
particular interest rate profile, matching the durstion of the financial assets to the duration of any related
linhilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of assets;

= heow the risks that affect performance of the business model (and the fnancial assets held within that business
madel) and how those risks are manoged;

= how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
psgets managed or contractual cash flows collected; and
The frequency, volume and timing of zales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expeciations ahout future sales activity,

Tranafers of financeal assets to third panties in tramsactions that do not qualify for de- recomnition are nol considered sales
for this purpose, consisterit with Seychelles Pension Fund's cominuing recognition of the assets.

Fimancial assets that are held for trading aor are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair valee basis are
measured at FVTPL

Finanecial assets: Assessment whether cortraetial cosh flows are solely payments of principal and interext

For the purpose of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the foir value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
“Interest’ is defined as corsideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amiuant outstanding during a pariiculer pertod of towe and for other basic lending risks and costs Je.g. liquidsty risk and
sdministrative costs], as well as a profit margin.

[in assessing whether the contractual cash fows are solely payments of principal and interest, Seyvchelles Pension Fund
considers the contraciual terms of the instrument. This includes nesting whether the financial assel contains a
comtraciual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash fows such that it would oot meer this
coadition. In making this sssessment, Seychelles Pension Fund considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terins that may adjust the conirachual coupon rate, including vamable rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- Terms that limit Sevchelles Pensicn Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assels (eg. non-recourse
features),

A prepayasent feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and intercst criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal aed interest on the principal amount cwistanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early ermination of the contract. Addiionally, for a finnncial agset acquired at
a significant discount or premium io ns contractaal par amount, & feature that permits or reqitires prepayment @i an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accroed (but unpaid) contractual mterest (which
may also include reasonable additional compensation for early ferovination) 18 treated consistent with this criterion il the
fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at mitial recognition.

Financial assers; Swhsogiient mepsurement and gaims and Josses

Financinl asseds at These asseis are subsequently messured ot fair value. Met gama and loses, including any mberest or
FVTEL dividend meome, are recognised in profic or loss.
 Financial assets at Thesi: assefs are subsequently measured =1 amontised cosl using the offective imterest method. The
ammortised cosl amortised cost is reduced by impairment Iosses. Dnferest incoime, Foreign axchange galns and losses
and impairment ane recopnised in profit or lese Any gain or loss on derceopnition is recegnieed in
prrofit or Toss.
Diebt  investmenis These asets are subsequently messured at fair value. Interest income caleulated using the effective
af FYoCl imtereat method, foreign exchange gains ond losses and impairment are recognised in profit or kess

Oither met pains amd losses ore recognised othir comprebensive inconss. On derecogaition, gaing and
loases necumialated in OCT are reclassified te profit and koss.

" Equity investments These asscts are subsequently measured ot fair value, Dividends are recognised s income in profit or
al FY O] loss uitless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
pains am Josses ans recopnised in OCT and are never reclassified 1o profin or boss,
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The application of these policies are explamed below.

8. The fixed deposits and treasury bonds are beld by Seychelles Pension Fund in & separate portfolio to provide interest
income. Sevchelles Peasion Fund considers that these instruments are beld within a business model whose objective
is achieved by holding financial assets to colleet their contractual cash fows (rather than to sell the assets poior to
their contractual mamrity to realise changes in fair value). The instruments mature in one to seven vears and the
contractual terms of these financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows thay are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These assets have therefore been classified as financial
szsels ot amovtised cost under IFRS 9.

b. The equity sccurities represent investments that Sevchelles Pension Fund both intends 1o hold for long-term
dividends and those managed on a fair value basis, Seychelles Pension Fund has decided 1o nod elect the FVOCT
classifivation option for equity mstruments not held for trading, therefors te entire equivy pertfolio of Sevehelles
Pension Fund bave been classified as financial assets st FVTPL under IFRS 9.

g.  Trade and other receivables and Cash and cash eguivalents are classified at amortised cost under [FRS 9.
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial labilities are classified as measored at amonised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as st FVTPL
if it 15 classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
al FWTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, iocluding any interest expense, are recognised in prodit or
loss. Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any again or loss on derecognition is
also recognised i profit or loss.

#, Recognition and Initinl measurement

Trade receivables and debt securitics issued are initially recognised when they are origimated. All other financial assets
and finansial liabihties are inthally recognised when Seychelles Pension Fund becomes o party (o contractun] provisions
of the instrumenst.

A financial asset (unless it iz a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial lability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transactions costs that are directly atribotable to its acquisition
or issee. A tradie recaivable wathout o significant financing component 1% measured ot the transaction price,

it Derecognition

Finemeial assets

Seychelles Pension Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
agset expire, or it transfers the nghts to receive the contractaal cash flows in a transactions which substantially all of the
rizks and rewards of ovmership of the financial asset are ransferred or in which Seychelles Pension Fund nedther transfers
nor retams substantially all of the risks and rewards of coamerslhip and it does not retain control of tye Gnancial asset.

Financial Fahilities

Seychelles Pension Fund derecognises o financial Lability when iis contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. Seychelles Pension Fund also derecognises a financial Liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modified liability are substantinlly different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms
ig recopnised at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
pasd is recognised in profit or loss.
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

iv. OMffsersing

Financial ass¢ts and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, ind only when, Seychelles Pension Fund curmently has a legally enforceable right 1o set off the amounts and it
intends either to setthe them on a pet bazis or to replise the asset amd senle the liability simulianeously,

v Tmpairment of financiel assers

IFRS % replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in LAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The new impairment
teodel applies 1o financial assets measured o amortised cost, comtract assets and debt investments at FVOCT, but not to
investments in equily instruments, Under IFRS 9, credit losses are secopnised sarlier than under TAS 39,

Sevchelles Pension Fund recopnizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on:

- financial assets measured of amortized cost;
debt investments measured af FYOCT: and
Coptract nsseis (as defined in [FRS 15),

Sewchelles Pension Fund measwres loss allowances af an amount equal o lifetime ECL, except for the following, which
are measured as 12-month ECL:

debi securitics that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the reporting dade; and
Chiher debt securities and bank balances for which credit nsk (i.e. the nsk of default occurring over the expecied
life of the financial mstrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition,

Lass allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always mepsured at an amoum equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a Gnancial asset has increpsed significantly since initial recognition amd
when estmating ECL, Sevchelles Pension Fund considers reasanable and supportable informatéon that & relevant and
available withowt undue effort or cost, This includes bath quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
Sevchelles Pension Fund's historical experience and informed credit assessmemt and including forward-looking

information. Seychelles Pension Fund assumes thit the credit risk on a financial asset hos mereased significantly if it =
more than 30 days past due.

Seychelles Pension Fund considers & financial asset to be m defanlt when:
- the berower 12 unlikely 10 pay its credit obligations to Seychellea Pension Fund in full, without recourse by
Seychelles Penston Fund fo action such as realising security (if any 15 held); or deposit withheld or
The fAnancial aszer is more than 90 days past due,

Seychelies Pension Fund considers a debt security o have low credit risk when it credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrament.

| 2-msonth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date {or shorter if the expected life of the instrument is bess than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL2 is the maximum contractual peried over which Seychelles
Pension Fund is exposed to cradit risk.

Measwrement of ECLy

ECLs arc a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in sccordance with the coniract and the cash flows

that Seychelles Pension Fund expecis 1o receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effectve mmterest rabe of the financial assel.
16
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The company uses an internally developed model for the measurement of ECL. However, this will not ¢amy any
significant effect on the Company’s Financial Statements

Credit-impeived [Tnencial axsees

At each reporting date, Sevchelles Pension Fund assesses whether financinl assets carried al amortised cost and debt
securitics at FVOCT are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated fsture cash flows of the financial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable date:

- significant financial difficulty of the bormower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than %0 days past dwe:

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by Seychelles Pension Fund on terms that Sevchelles Pension Fund
wiould not consider otherwise,

= it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganesation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allewance for ECL in the statement of financial pesition

Laoss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carmymg amount of the
ASSELS.

Far debt securities at FVOCT, the loss allowance is charged to profit or boss and is recognised in OCL
Write-off

The gress carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when Seychelles Pension Fund determines that the debtor does
not have assets of sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject 1o enforcement activities in order to comply with
Seychelles Pension Fund's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(d)y Property and squipment

Land and building, held for use in the production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes, are stated at their
fair value, based on every two year valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for
buildings, Any sccumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amowni of
the asset and the net amount i= restated ta the revalued amount of the asset. All other property and equipment is stated

at historical cost less deprecintion. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are meluded in the azsets carrying amount or recognized as @ separate asset as appropeiate, onky when
it is probakble that future economic bepefits associated with the item will flow o Sevchelles Pension Fund and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Increnses in the camying amount ansing on revaluation are credited w revalwaticn surplus in the statements of nel assets

available for benefits. Decreases thay offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against revaluation surplos

in the statements of net assets available for benefits divectly; all other decreases are chanped o the ncome and
expenditure accounts,

Depreciation is calewlated on the straight-line method to write off their cost to their residual values over their estimated
uschl lives as follows;
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Years
Building= %0
Lnprovement 15
Equipmeitt 5
Fumiture & Fritings In
Mdor Valkicle 5

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewsd, and adjusted if appropriate. at the end of each reponting period,

Where the carrying amownt of asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immedintely o
its recoverahle amount.

Gains and losses on disposals of property and eguipment are determined by comparing proceeds with CATYing amount
and are included in the Iacome and Expenditure Account. On disposal of revalued assets, the amounts included in
rewaluation surplus are transferred 1o retained earnings.

id) Invesiment propertics

Properties held 1o eam rent'or for capital apprecistion or both are classified as investment properties. Investmen
properties ane carried at fair value, representing open-marke! value determined every two years by external valuers and
subject to yearly reviews by the valuers. Changes in fair values are recognized in the Income and Expenditure Account
andd subsequently in net assets available for benefits.

Investment properties are transferred from property and equipment when they cease to meet the recognition criteria.

(e}  Invesiment in subsidiary

Consalidation

The subsidianes of Seychelles Pension Fund are not consolidated due to the application of the IFRS 10 consolidation
exemption for ‘investment entities’.

Separode firencial Staremenss

Subsidiarics are measured and accoumted for at fair value in accordance with the requirements of *investment entities’.
Fair value gaing or losses on subsidiaries are recognised on a separate line on the income statement under profit or loss,

(M Investment in assoclates

Separare Finaneie! Statemends

In the separate financial sistements of the investor, Sevehelles Pension Fund eleced to measure invesiments in associaes
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with [FRS 9 with the exemption taken from applving the equity method
based on TAS 28,

(il  Contribufions recelvable

Contributions receivable are recognized when due which i2 219 of the second month. Contributions receivable are stated
at their pominal value as reduced by appropriste allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts,

The nominal value of contributsons receivable i assumed to approximate its fair value,

()  Benefits payahle

Banefilz payvable are stated at their nomimal value.

1}
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The nomimal value of benefits pavable is assumed 1o approximaie its fair value.
ik} Receivables

Receivables and prepayinents are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost using
the effective interest method, Jess provision for impaioment. A provision for impamrment of trade receivables is
estshlished in accordance with Mote O (v).

The carrying amounts of recervables are assumed (o approximate theis fair valses.
Iy Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other shor-lerm highly liquid
investmants with original matarities of 3 months or less,

{m) Foreign currencies
Functional and presentatian cnrrency

Irems included in the financial statements are measured using Seyehelles Rupee, the cumrency of the primary econamic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”™). The financial ststements of Seychelles Pension Fund
are presented in Seychelles Rupee, which is Seychelles Pension Fund's functional and presentation curvency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency uwsing the exchange rates prevailing on the dases
of the transactions and fram the ranslation al vear end exchange rales of monetary assats and linbilities denominnted in
forcign currencies are recognized in the statement of comprehensive meome.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the statement
of comprebensive income within *finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the Statement of comprehensive income within ‘other {losses)gaing net’.

Non-menetary items that are measured at historical cost i a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the iransaction.

Nom-monetary iteoss that are measured at fair value m foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date the fair value was determined.

Translation difference on nop-monetary items, such as aguities held at fair valae through profit or logs, are reporied as
part of the fair valee gainor loss. Translation differences on non-manetary items, such as equities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, are inchuded in the fair value reserve in equity.

()  Impairment of non-financial asseis

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subjest to amortization and are tested anmually for impairment. Assers
that are subject o amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amcunt of the asset exceeds ils recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs 1o sell and value in use. For purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which

there are separately wdentifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

(o}  Leases

Leases where a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are classified as operating
leases, Lease remtal charges are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account on a straight-line-basia over the period

of lease. The amount paid at incepticn by Sevchelles Pension Fund 10 acquire lease interest on land has been capitalized
and accounted as depozit on leasehold land and depreciated over the lease term,

i
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(p)  Imterest and dividend income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method, Dividend income is recognised in profit or
koss on the date on which Sevchelles Pension Fund®s right to receive payment is estoblished,

The ‘effective interest method' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recerpis through the
expected life of the financial instmoment 1o:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; o
The amortised cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective intereat rate is applied to the gross camying amount of the asset
{when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have
become credit-impaired subssquent 1o initial recognition, the interest income is calculated by applying the ctfective
interet rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calewlation of
interest income reverts 1o the gross basis,

(q) Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution plans are retirement benefit plans under which amvounts to be paid as retirement benefils are
determined by contributions 0 & fund together with investment earmnings thereon.

Defined benefit plans are retirement benefit plans under which amounts to be paid as retirement benefits are determined
by reference to a formula usually based on cmployees” eurnings andior years of service. Sewchelles Pension Fund
operates & Defined Benefit Plan.

Actuarial present value of promised retirement beneflts is the present value of the expected paymenis by a retirement
benefit plan to existing and past employees, attributable to the service already rendered.

Vested benefits are benefits, the rights to which, under the conditions of a retirement berefit plan, are not conditional
on continued employment. This means a vested member meets the criteria of 10 years continuous contribution or 20
vears aggregate for a pension. However the criteria is prior to retirement to netiretnent for 1{ years.

Retirement henefit plans arc normally described as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans, each
having their cwn distinctive characteristics. Ocoasionally plans exist that contain characteristics of both, Such bybrid
plans are considered to be defined benefit plans for the purposes of this standard.

Defined benefit plan — Employees of Seychelles Pension Fund

As per the Employment Act of Seychelles, compensation obligation is only paid to emplovess leaving after five years
of contimued service. The entitlement is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to existing and
the completion of a minimum service period. In Seychelles, this is conditional on the emploves remaining in
employiment for an least five years.

The obligation is calculated using a projected unit credit method, adjusted for 2 probability that the employee will
remain in service up to 5 years. The management computed the obligation and did net wtilise any external, independent

actuaries. The obligation ia calculaed, along with unrecognised gains and losscs which are recognised in the Income
and Expenditure when incurred. Obligations are derecognised upon settlement of curtailment of the obligation.

iry Tax

I accordance with paragraph 60 of the Seychelles Pension Act, 2005, Seychelles Pension Fund 15 excmpi from stamp
duty, business tax, trade tax, goods and services tax and all other taxes, fees and duties on ils assets, documwents,

instruments, profits, operntions and properties.
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(= Aceruals

Accruals are recognized when Seyehelles Pension Fund has a present legal or constractive abligation as & result of past
events amndd it B probable that an sutflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated. will be required to settle the
obligation.

(th  STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDARDS AND INTERFEET ATION
(1) Sramdards, amendmenis to published standords and interpretations effective from T January 2007

The following amendments to [FRS= becams mandatorily effective from | Tanuary 2017, All these amendments to IFRSs
generally reqguire full retrospective application (12, comparative amounts have to be restated), with some amendments

Teqnnnyg progpective application.

Amendments to LAS 12: Becognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20017)

The IASB issued the amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes w clarify the accounting for deferned tax assers for unrealised
losses on debi instrumenis measured at faar valae,

The amesdments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law resiricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference, Furthermore, the amendmenis
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrving amount,

The amendments apply relrospectively.

These amendaents will not have an effect as Sevehelles Pension Fund is exempt from txation.

Amendments to [TAS 7: Disclosare Initiative
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017)

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are part of the JASB's Disclosure Initistive and help users of
financial statements better understand changes in an entity's debt,

The amendment requires emtities to provide disclosures about changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
inclading both changes arizing from cash flows and non-cash flow changes (such as foresign exchange gains or Insses).

On initial application of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods,

Sevehelles Pension Fund has no Rabilities that avise from Sinceneing aotivities, this this amendment will kave no imipaes
on Sevehellex Pension Fund. i

Anudlmnu to IFR5 1I: Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2004-2016 Cyele
(Effective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2017)

The IASE's annual improvements process deals with non-urgent, but necessary, clarifications and amendments to [FRS.

2014-2006 evele (1ssued December 201 6)

Following is a summary of the amendmems fram the 2014-2016 annual improvements evcle,
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Standard Dretails
IFR5 1 Deletion of short-term exemptions for frst-time adopiers
= Short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of IFRS 1 were deleted

First-rime Adopiion of because they have now served their intended purpose.

International Financial Reporting ¢ The amendment is effective from 1 January 2018

Srevnalrddy
| IAS 28 Clanification that measuring investeas af fair valoe throwgh p-mﬁf or logs 1 an
I mvestment=hy-invesiment choce

Investmenis in Assoctares and # The amendments clamfy that:

Joine Ventwres - A entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifving

entity, may elect, al inial recognition on  mvestment-hy-
investment basis, to measure its investmeants in associates or joint
veriiures af Fair value through profit or loss.

= If an entity that 1s not isell an imvestment entity has an interest in
Ap Ase0iate of joint venture that is an investment enticy, the entity
may, when applving the equity method. ebect to retam the fair valee
measurement applied by that mvestmsent antity associale of joml
venture to the investment entity associnte’s or joint venture's
intercats in subsidiaries. This clection is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture, af the later of the date
on which (a) the investment entity associale or jomnl venhare is
instially recegnised; (b) the associate or joint venure becomes an
investment entity; and {c) the investment entity associte or joml
verlure first becomes o paneit,

& The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective
from 1 January 2018, with earlier application permdtted. If an entity
applies thoge amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that

fact.
IFRS 12 Clarification of the scope of the disclosure requirements i IFRS 12:
#« The amendments clanfy that the disclosure requirements in IFRES 12,
Disclosere of Interesis fn Other other than those in paragraphs B1O-B16, apply to an entity”s mteresi
Enities in a subsidiary, a joinl veniurs of an associate that is classified as held
for sale,
# The amendments are effective from 1 January 2017 and must be
- applied retrospectively. —

These amendments will have o impact on Sevekelles Pension Find

(i) Seandards, amendments to published stendards and interpretations isxwed but not yet effective
IFRS 16 Leases (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessees and leszors, Tt will supersede the following lease Standard and Interpretations upon it8 effective
dale:

* JAS |7 Lenses;

* IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease;

= SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives; and

« 81C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

Identification of a lease IFRS 16 applies a contral model 10 the idemification of leases, distimguishing between leases
and service contracts on the basis of whether there is an identified asset conmtrolled by the customer. Control is considerad
1o exist if the customer has:

X

Chapter 4 | 4.4 | Financial Statements | Trustees Report | Page 89



Seychelles Pension Fund

SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

a) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of an identified asser: and
b} The right o direct the use of that asset.

The Standard provides detiled guidonce to determine whether those conditions are met, including instances where the
supplier has substantive substitution rights, and where the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset
iz used are predetermimed

Lessee accounting IFRS 16 introduces significant changes to lessee accounting: it removes the distinction between
operating and finance leases under 1AS 17 and requires a lessee (o recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
lease commencement for all keases, except for shor-ierm leases and leases of low value asscts.

The nght-of-use asset is mitially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost {subject 1o cettam exceptions) less
accumulaied deprecintion and impairment bsses, adjuated for any re-measurement of the lease liakility.

The lepse lability 13 indually measwred at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interes and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amomgst others.

If & lessae elacts not to apply the gensmnl requirements of IFRS 16 to short-term leazes (i.e. one that does not include a
purchase option and has a kease term at commencement date of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, the
legzes should racognise the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over
the lease term oF another svstematic basis, similar o the current aceounting for operating leases.

Lessor accounting In contrast to kessee accounting, the IFRS 16 lessor accounting requirements remain largely
uschanged from LAS 17, which continue to require a lessor to classify & lease sither as an operating lease or a finance
lease,

I addition, IFRS 16 also provides guidance on the sccounting for sale and leasehack transactiong. Extensive disclosures
are also required by the newr Stamdand.

Due to the prominence of leasing transactions in the economy, many entities across different industries will be affected
by IFRS 16. In some cases, the changes may be substantial and may require changes to the existing IT systems and

internal controls. Entities should consider the nature and extent of these changes,

For additional information, please refer io the Deloitte publications IFRS in Foces and [FRS Industry Insights which
highlight the practical implications of IFRS 16 10 vaniows industrics. These publications can be downloaded at
hitp:wwow . iasplus.com'en/tag-types'global’ newsletiers IFRS-industry-inaights,

IFRS 16 is effective for reponing periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted for
entities that apply IFES 15 at or before the date of instial application of IFRS 16. A lessee can apply IFRS 16 either by
a full retrospective approach or 8 modified retrospective approach. I the latler approach is selecied, an entity is not
required 1o restate the comparntive information and the comulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 must be presented
as an adjustment o opening retamed earmings (or other component of equity a5 appropriaie).

De 1o the facr that Sevchelles Pension Fund has @ lorge amounr of lease contracts where they act ax both fessee and
lessor, this standard will have an impacr on the firancial satemenis once implemented. Management is in the PPOCESE
af determining the full impact of this standard,

(i) Srandards, amendments fo published standards and interprodotions effective in the reporting period

Amendments to IFRS I Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Effective for
annual periods beginning on or alter 1 January 2018)

The pmendments clarify the following:

I. In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-based payment, the accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions should follow the same approach as for equity-settled share-based payments.

2. Where tax law or regulation requires an entily to withhold a specified number of equity instruments equal 1o the
monetary value of the employee's fax obligation to meet the employee s tax liability which is then remitied to the tax
authority {fypically in cash), ie. the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net sctilement feature’, such an
arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based payment would have
been classified as equity-getiled had it not included the net settlement feature,
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3. A modification of a share-based pavment that changes the ransaction from cash-setiled 1 v-aattlnd
pccounted for as follows: o equity-settled should be

{1} The original liability 12 derecognised;

iii} the equity-scitled share-based payment is recognised a1 the modification date fair value of the equity instrument
granted to the extent that services have been rendered wp 1o the modification date: and

(iti) Any difference between the carrving amount of the liability al the medification date and the amount recognised in
equity should be recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018 with earlier application
permitied. Specific transition provisions apply.

Thix stamcdard will heve no impact on Sevehelles Pension Fund, sy they do wot make share based payments

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28; Sale or Contribution of Asseis between an Imvestor and fis Associnte or
Joint Venture (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined)

TI‘-'IZE ;m:ndmmts deal with siuations where there 12 a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and fls associaie
of joint venture, [A%S 28 and [FRS 10 are amended, as follows:

[AS ZE has been amended to reflect the following:
*  Gains and losses resulting from transactions mvolving assets that do not consttute 4 business between an mvestor
and its associate or joim venture are recognised to the extent of unrelated investors’ mterests in the associate or joint

viEniure.
*  Gains or losses from downstream trangactions mvolving assets that constitute a business batween an mvestor and its

associate or joint venture should be recognised in full in the investor’s financial statements.
IFRS 10 has been amended to reflect the following:

+  Gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a ransaction with
an associate of a joint venture that is accounted for usmg the equity method, are recognised in the parent®s profit or
o= only o the extent of the unrelated investors' intaresis in that associate or joint venture, Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or o joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) 1o fair value are recognised in the former
parent”s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors” imieresls in the new associle or jomt ventans,

In December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its
rescarch project on the equity method of accounting. Easlier application of these amendments is still permitted.

This amendment will have no impact on Seychelles Pension Fund as is ewrently siructured.

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018}

The amendments address concemns arising from implementing the new financial instruments Standard, IFRS 9, before
implementing the new insurance contracts standards that the Board is developing to replace [FRS 4. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issning insurance contracis: a (emporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an

overlay approach
The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2318,

Sevehelles Pension Fund does mot iswe insurance coniraces, therefore this amendment will ove ro impac o Seyeivelles
Pension Fund.

Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property
{Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1018)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, meleding property under construction or development
into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in wse ccours when the property meets, or ceses

to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
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Emtities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that gecur on of after the beginning of the anaual
reporting period in which the eatity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of property
held at that date and. if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist ai that date.

Early application of the amendmeants is permutted and muost be disclosed,

Sevchelles Penston Fund helids o substarifal amown of propecty ar (avesiments, The amendment will nod have o material
irpreret on Seychelles Penvion Fund,

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Corrency: Transactions and Advance Consideration
{Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary 2018)

The interpretanon clarifies that in defermining the spot exchange rate 10 use on initial recogmition of the related asset,
expense of meome (or part of ith on the deFecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monstary liabality relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. IF there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine o date of the iransactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration,

Entities may apply the amendmenis on a fully retrospective basis. Allematively, an entity may apply the interpretation
prospeciively to all asseis, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or afier;
{1} The beginning of the reporting persod i which the entity first applies the interpretation; or
(i1} The beginmng of & prior reporting period presenied a: compasative informstion in the financial statements
of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the inlerpretation.

The imserpretation will kave no effect an Seychelles Pension Fund since there is no advance consideration in the books of
Sevchefles Penslon Fund.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, incleding
expectations of futere events that are beleved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances

Critical saccounting estimates and assumptions

Seychelles Pension Fund makes estimates and assumptions concemning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will by definition, seldom squal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within next year are discussed below

fa}  Classification of financial nssets

Sevchelles Pension Fund follows the guidance of International Financial Eeponting Standard (IFRS) & — “Financial
instruments” on classifying non-dervative financial assets in accordance with Seyehelles Pension Fund’ s business madel
and cash flow test. This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, Seychelles Pension
Fund evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to collect contractual cash flows or to achieve an
objective by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

bl  Impalrment of financial assets

Seychelles Pension Fund follows the guidance of [FRS 9 ‘expected credit losses’ method to determine whether its
financinl assets requires impairment. Expected credit losses are calculated by ideatifying scenarios in which a loan or
receivable defaults; estimating the cash shortfall that would be incurred in esch scenario if a default were 1o happen;
multiplying that loss by the probability of the default happening; #nd summing the results of all such possible defonl
events. This process requires significont judgement. {n making this judgement, Seyvchelles Pengion Fund considers all
facts and circumstances that are available at the reporting date.

b
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i€} Impairment of aiher assets

Ax each balance sheet date, management reviews and assesses the carrying amounts of the other assets and where relevant
writes them dewn to thewr recoverabke amounts based on the best estimates.

() Eetiremeni benefit obligation

The cost of compensation has been determined using the method as per the Seyehelles Employment Act and have been
estimsated which will not be materially different had it been computed by an external Actuary.

{e)  Limitations of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivily analysis in respect of market rnisk demonsirates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
pssumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. Tt shoald
also be nowed that these sensiivitics are non-linear and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or
exirapolated from these results.

Sensitivity analysis does not take im0 consideration thet Seychelles Penstion Fund’s nsset and liabiliies are actively
maniaged. Other limitations include the use of hypothetical markel movements to demonstrale potential risk that only
represent Seychelles Pension Fund's views of possible near-term markel changes that cannot be predicted with any
cerlainty.

ifi  Contributions receivable

As per Seychelles Pension Fund Aet 2005, contributions are due on the 217 day of the following month. At vear end,
contributions for the month of December ane due to be paid in January the following year whick is nof in the finanedal
year. Therefore an estinate is made based on the acmal contribution received of the preceding months,

{g)  Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instrumenis traded in sctive markets is based on guoted market prices. The fair value of
financial mstrurmeats that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. Seyvchelles
Pension Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are bazed on market cosditions existing af the end

of each reporting period.

Sevchelles Pension Fund uses the following hierarchy for delermining and disclosing the far valoe of financial
nstrumments by valuation technigue:

Level 1: quoted [unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or linbalities

Lewel 2: other techniques for which all inputs wshich have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
abservable marke! data,

26
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&

(@)

FINANCIAL RISK MANANGEMENT

Seychelles Pension Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial and non-financial risks, In 2018, a Risk Register
was compiled by Seychelles Pension Fund to record and measure all rigks, A description of the significant risk factors
is given below together with the risk management policies applicable.

Imvestment risk

There are some directly linked 10 the investments of Seychelles Pension Fund. Sustained poor performance would lead
to msufficient returns that are currently fopping up the surplus of excess contribution over pension payments, Sevchelles
Pension Fund prefers a pradent approach to asset management that is likely to generate moderate, regular retums. The
primary conirol measure is the regular appraisal of Sevchelles Pension Fund's assets and jnvesiment sirategy by the
Board of Trustees upon the advice of the Actuary and other external advisors as appropriate

The following types of investment risk can be justified:

(i} Inierest rate risk

The risk that falling interest rates will reduce investment income on the asseis or lead 1o falling values of fived income
Inslruments.

Seychelles Pension Fund finances its operations through operating cash flows which are principally denominated in
Sevchelles Rupes.,

Several specific risk measures may be cited:

- Seychelles Pension Fund's primary inferest rate risk relates to interest-bearing investments. The information on
manurity dates and effective interest rotes of financial assate are disslosed under Mate 11

- Seychelles Pension Fund does not borrow, so the cost of borrowing is nil and unaffecied hy rate rises.

- There is a loan portfolio of loans to PMC at “fixed” rates, Although these rates are adjusted where the spread between
Seychelles Pension Fund’s rates and bank rates becomes too significant, there is & cenain inertin that tends to protect
Seychelles Pension Fund from sudden or temporary falls,

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rntes have been 100 basis points higher/Tower and all other variables were kept constant, Seychelles Pension
Fund's surplus for the year ended December 31, 2018 would be impacted as follows:

Amartised Cost Financial

Aseels
201K T
SR000 SR 000
Impact on surplus for the year (+/- 100 basis points) 021 6,208

The: risk that a sudden fall in asset values restricts Seychelles Pension Fund's ability to pay benefits. There are ssveral
ways in which Seychelles Pension Fund manages this risk:

Diversification — the assets are held in a wide range of different investments, thus limiting the probability of all

assets falling in valwes simultaneously. However, there are few imvestment mediums. _ _ _
Liquidity — great care is taken 1o ensure that Seychelles Pension Fund should not nesd to realize potentially volatile

assels when their values pre less,

28
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5, FINANCIAL RISK MANANGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Sevehelles Pension Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk because of imvestments held by Sevchelles Pension
Fund and classified on the statement of net assets available-for-gale.

The table below summarises the impact of increasea/decreases in fair value of the mvestiments on Seychelles Penswon
Fund’s fair value of financial assets. The analysis is based on the assumption that the fair value had increased/decreased

by %,
Liquidity Risk Financial assets at FV'TPL
2018 w7
SR000 SR000
Impact of change in fair value of 5% 11,951 T.381

M Liguidity risk

The risk that cash How requirements will force Seychelles Pension Fund 10 realize an investment on poor terms, either
theough the investment's unmarketahility (a loan) or illiguidity (a building), or simply because the azser value s
temporarily depressed {a share).

Sevehelles Pension Fund controls this risk primarily via a detailed anmeal budges 10 ensure that the investment stratepy
will generate positive cash flows, including where necessary the proceeds of the sale of certain assets. Cazh Now
forecasts help Sevchelles Pension Fund to fake appropriate actions,

Seychelles Pension Fund also has a portfolio of liquid assets, the maturities of which falls either before or concurrent o
the maturity of its ohligations.

Procedures have also been established throughowt Sevehelles Pension Fund so that all users channel their requirements
o the fimance funciion. This ensures that budget exercise 15 carmied owt in an effective manner.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of Seychelles Pension Fund's liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash
flovw and does not foresee any major liguidity risk over the slor (o medivm term,

e Credit risk

The nisk that 8 member defanlts on his contributions or & possible default by a tenant.

The risk is minimised by the fact that contribution 1o Sevchelles Pension Fund by active workers are mandatory and
contnibutions are deducted directly from emplovees” salaries and remitted to Sewchelles Pension Fund, There i= mo
history of material bad debts from contributions.  Seychelles Pension Fund has established procedures o ensure thar
rental agreements are made with tenanis with an appropriate credit history and though & newly introduced standing order
“monthly rent pavments and therefore risks of bad debis is considesed 1o be low,

i) Currency risk

S-c_'.-?helleﬂ Pension Fund’s activitics are not exposed to currency nisk. However, Seychelles Pension Fund requires
foreign exchange for developing its overseas investment which are met through reguests with financial institutions,

Only a small percentage of the portfolio is invested overseas mainly in listed foreign market and recently a foreign bank.

29
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANANCEMENT (CONTINUED)
fiv) Counter party risk
The risk that &n external fund manager defaults on its contractual responsibilities.
The risk is mitigated via the following measures:

All fund managers are subject 1 ngorous in-house assessment and due diligence from e known, independent
external experts prior to appointment, and to regular appraisal thereafier,

- Overseas fund managers are generally lorpe. well-established organisations with sound reputations and track
records,

- Seychelles Pension Fund seeks mdependent professional advice on oversens fund managers

- There is presently only one fund manager with whom Seychelles Pension Fund has entrusted with investing i
Mauntian market,

- Seychelles Pension Fumnd mansger provides regular monthly reporis 1o Sevchelles Pension Fund based on an
established mvestment policy.

by Economic risk

This corresponds to the risk that external economic events (other than those specifically relafed to investments] will
weaken Seychelles Pension Fund's financial position. Two examples of such risk are apparent:

(i} Industry risk

The ri=k that the economy collapses, leading to redundancics, early retirements and cessation of contributions, amongst
other wider social, political and economic effects in Sevchelles. The primary lkely effect on Sevchelles Pension Fund
of such an outcome would be an increase in benefits outgo (early retirements) and an accelerated shift from positive net
cash flow to negative net cash flow. Cash flow analysis of this kind of scenario suggesis that realization of assels of
fund would provide the necessary liguidity to counter the cash flow meed.

{if}) ImMuiian risk

Whalst the Ceritral Bank does pursue of a policy of price stability, ome cannol assume that a small isolated country such
a5 Seychelles will always be able to control inflation. Inflation would not be necessarily be a problem for Seychelles
Penzion Fund if it was acoompanied by compensatory increasze in one could not necessarily always count on the
alignment of mflation and yields.

Sevchelles Pension Fund protects itself in the following wavs:

- Real assets (shares, property) would be expected to appreciate in value both in terms of capital and income growth,

= Overseas holdings woukd tend w buoy up returns since one might expect local inflation to be closely linked to Rupes
depreciation,

= When considering the purchase of Government debt instruments, Seychelles Pension Fursd demands a significant
vield compensation for inflation risk on long term instruments.

- For pension there is a capping of 3% mflation,

(e} Operational risk
The risk that Seychelles Pension Fund may incur financial losses due to negligence or fraud,
Operational risk is, however, remote since the company's operations are supporied by a strong management structure

and controls in place. These activities are under close supervision of management, in tum monitored by the Board that
18 given a moathly report.

0
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(d)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANANGEMENT (CONTINUED)

There is also an infernal audit department who assesses the existing situation and reinforce any shortfalls that could come
across, A risk department and a Quality Assurance Analyst also does thoreugh “audits™ 10 ensure that are no malpractices
and frawd,

Ligal risk

The risk that Seychelles Pension Fund commits an act that is subsequently deemed illegal and would be subject o
penalty | . | . _

This risk & somewhat limited since Seychelles Pension Fund is govemed principally under a singhe, chear piece of
legislation: The “Sevchelles Pension Act, 20057, All the activities of Seychelles Pension Fund are regulated by the Act,
and Sevchelles Pension Fund are regulated by PEMC and is also accountable to the Minister of Finance, Annual report
of Sewchellzs Pension Fund are also submitted the Mational Assembly.

Disaster recovery risk
The risk that a disaster wipes out Sevchelles Pension Fund's capacity to continue its operations,
The most obvious example 1% that the offices burn down, destroving all written and electronic reconds,

The writien records would be Jost if the entire offices were destroved. Such koss i=s not considered to be sagnificant,
although it would represent an inconvenience. This is because all major files are stored electronically and centrally, and
are subject to rigorous extemal backup procedures. In particular, the Backups are also held off-site. Om a related note,
inlemet security issucs have also been addressed. A single, selated PO iz dedicated o mtemet, and all external discs
must be sconned on this machine prior 1o contact with the netwoerk. The presence of an IT Officer adds to the security
of the back-ups of electronic information. All records of members have also been digitalised, [T Section also undertakes
a vigorous audit of its IT Svstem, practices and users every 2 yvears by an independent external [T avditor from Mauritius.

As o the risk o Sevehelles Pension Fund of death of one or more of its staff, it is our view that there is no “key man”
such that this would materially affect Seyvchelles Fension Fund,

Reputational risk

The risk that cenain activities of Sevchelles Pension Fund be badly perceived by the public, thus damaging Sevchelles
Pension Fund's capacity to operate,

Seychelles Pension Fund's policy of transparency and open communication together with corporate povemance
framework will protect it from this risk. Although reputation is a Fagile quality, Seyvehelles Pension Fund has established
a sound and credible reputation. Seychelles Pension Fand has always promoted ransparency especially with members,
motably via dissemination of infermatieon and explanatory hieratare, [s very detailed annual report and financial
statements each vear also promotes clarity and full comprehensive details of all Seyvchelles Persion Fund*s activities for
the vear. Website and other social media platforms are also well used as regular communication and information channels
to all Sevehelles Pension Fund stakeholders, especially s members,

Seychelles Penzion Fund also plans to introduce o coliure of best practice in évery sepment of its activities by
benchmarking on whatever appropriale procedures are applied by enterprises around the world (e.g custodians,
independent fund managers, application of Intemational Accounting Standards, etc.) An annual General Mesting stasted
i 2017 will also help in addressing such nisk.

Anti-Money Lanndering Act and prevention of Terrorism Act

Seychelles Pension Fund complies fully with Financial Instifutions Act, Anti- Money Laundering Act, 2006 and
Prevention of Terrorizm Act, 2004, Seychelles Pension Fund observes all requirements and policies to ensure that
there is o money laundering and terrorist fmancing sources of funds, Seychelles Pension Fund °s main oo soutces of
funds come via the banking system through contributions from emplovers and emplovess mostly via Company bank
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accoutits or personal bank accounts with minimal cash. The other source of funds are from investment returns all from
banking system, All banks are supervised by Ceatral Bank of Seychelles and have stringent Anti- Money Laundering
systems in place. Other mechanisme that Seyehelles Pension Fund observes are:

# Employes training in AML,

¢ [ndependent awdiis

# Policies and procedures to detect snd report suspicious transactions and ensure compliance with the laws.
# Timely Communications with regulaioss,

There were no non-compliances cases concerning to AML and Terrorist Financing. This is because Sevchelles

Pension Fund does not recerve any income in foreign currency outside Seychelles other than return from Sevchelles
Pension Fund investments which are all bank transactions.

32
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FROPERTY AND EQUIFMENT (DDNTINUELD)

The land and buildings were valwed &t December 31, 2008 by o independent valuer, The value of the land and buildings is subpect to
reviews every two years and the last one was canied out December 31, 2018,

The fair valse of land and buldings Call within category 3 of the fair value hisrarchy, No changes noted daring the wvear.

INVESTMENT PROFERTIES

Fair valise HiA T

SR Sd°H
Al lanuary |, 1.3%4 362,457 1,300,455 450
Additions 35449 996 45,910,430
Revaluation an myestment properiies £.601,330 006, 754
Adjusimen 542 A% x
At Degember 31, 1,441.036.578 1306 bl 45T

—_—

The vabue of thi imvestment properiics are subject 10 reviews avery tan years and the last one was carried oat at December 31, 2018 by
an independsnt professionnlly qualified valuer, on 3 epen-market basia with existing senancies based on (noome metbed spproved by
the Beard. A Valuation Commitiee has béen setup 1o review the value of the mwvestment properises on an snnual basis. The Valuation
Commilie: i chatred by a quslified Quanbity Surveyor. A valetion of propentics policy has alse beem introduced,

Thee fair value of the properties hag been valued by external valuers and fall within caregory level 3 of the Eair valee hierarchy.

IF Imvestiveen propeties had been carried ot cost less accunmilaved depreciation, the carmying amount would have been as follows:

1018 2017
Lond Buwilding Tatal Tirtal
SCR SCRH 2R HSCR
Cost 176,774,099 735,237,622 23L011,721 32.010.720
Accurnulaned depreciation - {75537 A05) {7533TA65) {60.432,713)
Mot book valee 176,774,000 G709, 700157 B&6,474,256 E7LAT0.00%
[ —  — ———— |
The fallowing amounts have been recogndsed in profit o koes:
RIES iz
SCR SR
Rental incaie 114,510,673 108, 1 22,954
Lirest operabing experses generating renral income (37068 .039) (20,029,455
Prafit arizing fram (mvesimest property T AL 63 THv31529
Ingrease in fair value RA&1,320 £, 550G, 550
Toral Elﬂlﬁﬁi BE (11, 38R

Ad ab 31 Decemiber 2008, several Invesomint propenties under consthection are carried at cost SCR 384 m {2017: SCR 13 1m) because
their fair values could nod be reliafly measured,

s
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DEFOSIT O LEASEHOLD CARAVELLE HOUSE

(2} Deposit was paid to Mascansignes Properties Limibed in 2005 on a long term lease of 47 years. The mitial deposdl om the leass

(al

amaunting (o 5B 50 million paid in 2006 is being amortised over the ferm of lese and she movement & as laflows:

2018 M7
Cost oL B B SCH
Axat | Jamuary =TT S0, 00 00
Amoritsation
At | lamuary, B,d14.43%3 5T A0
- Charge for the year £15 464 15 Al
Al 3 December K19 BT B304,433
Mt Bonk Value
At 31 Desember El‘fflﬂlil.'l 43,685 567
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIINARY

018 07
Proporticnate sharehodding 3 Lo S51%
Opportunity Investment Compary Linvibed < A1 fair vabue (2007 SCR 115 per share) 44,4 26,0126 44 426,026

- Ko fair value adjusiment has been made in visw that there was no change in Fur value as & 31.12.2008,

Diwtails of the EPF's subsidiary, Opparturiny Investment Compamy Limited {QFCL), are given below:

OICL
Class of shares held: Ordinany
Year end; 31 Depember
Froportion of ownership mierest asd vouing power held idirect); %
Couniry of incorporation and residenees! Seychelles
Activiey: Ievesisnent badding

OICL was incorporated as an investment vehiele solely for the parpose of soquiring shares in SACDS OICL swrently holds
73T ATY ghares in SACOS which represenis an awnership micrest of 1932%,

The fair valwe of CACL is derived from the Far valee of the SEACOS shares il halds, A1 the emd of the reporting persod the value per
SACOE share a3 listed on the sock exchange was 5CR 115,

SCR
Tatal value of SACOS shares in OICL ag af 31 Decomsher 2008 (757477 ot SCR 113 eack)c &7, 100 &25
Seyehelles Penston Fund's 51% porison of the total value 44 436026

The Fund bas alsn directly imvested in SACOS with a satal mvestment of 26,509 shares which represenis an ownership interest of
1.33%. This investment has been classifbed under financinl assets measured at far value through profis ar lass.

Ag 2t 31 December 2E, SPF holds 20.64% in SACOS an otal of which 19.32% through QICL and 1.33% directly in SACOS ara
tedal faur vilue of SCR 47 481 486

1h
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g, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

{b} Summarised firencial information in respect of the Fund's subsidiary 13 sel out as belnw:

iy Summarized simemnent of Financial positian amd simement of profil or loss and ather Ingoue

COpportumity Investment Company Limited RIS T il

ST RO L L]
Cimrent assets 1S 5 lS
Tan=carmeiil 5 ET.AL0 A7.110
Currest binbilities 1,035 5,301
Wan-carrent lishilities - -
Revemue 1,135 | R
Tedal comprehensive prodit or luss for the year LM 113 6654)

{id) Surnmarised cash flow infermation:

Opparnmity lavestment Company Lismited pLIE 7
SR SCR'000
Operating aclivities 1352 5,243
Investment szbvines - 3
Fisaeemnp activities 1146 (5,273
Nel chamge im eash and cash equivalents 1,116 (2%

{idi} There is 00 comritment and costingencies as at the reporting period

10. IMVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

ia) At faif value g 2007 2013 27
5% Held T Held SCH SCH
Seychelles Breweries Linied I 6% 258,539,268 TS A4S 100
A Sallarn Bark (non- 1iied) k11, My Elll!.!-ﬁljll m.ﬂﬁ&'ﬂ
(1) Movements- Sevhrew
2R HLT
SCH SCR
Balance as of Jansary 1, 215 245000 19R, 876,360
Fair wnlue od)uitmeres 43,546,774 16, 573030
Balance as & Discember, 11 158.5%0 J6R ZIﬂb

Sevchelles Broweries has & financinl reporting period emding 34 June

At 3| Digcember M8, the fair value of ihe Fend's interest in Seychelles Breweries Limited, which is bsted om the Trap-X
exchange, wai SUR 78 per share {2017 BCR 65 hased o the quoted market price availalde, achich i a level | input i terms of

IFRS 13,
(it} Movements- Al Salam bank

EITE Il

SCR SCH
Balance as at January 1, 20,975,230 20,65, 40
Fasr value adjussmenis Bt 361 323520
Balance as at December, 31 HI“E“ ]ﬂlm.lﬂ
The Al Salam Bank has a financial reporting period ending 315t December and has only stasted full operations from Febrary

20N % conwarcls,

Ag at 31 Decepber 2018, the fair value of the shars: i respaet of Al Salam Bapk which o an non- Nsted company were
calcaluied using ghe aidjusted net asser valug method wheeh is a level 3 sput in torms of IFRS 11, Thes i3 as per SFFs pw palicy
on vabmagion of unlisted equiries

n
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NOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 35T PECEMBER 2015

10, INVESTMENT I ASSDCTATES [OONTINUED)
(hy  Detasds of the Pund's associates at the end of the reporting period:

M Seyehelles Brewenes Linsiad
Principle Activitics Beverage manufaclunng

(il Sumsmrised siatena of Fisnclal pesiics and sialemos of profit or loss and other income as per the Audied Fimancisl

Stalements.
1) Jume 30 Jung
INE 0Ny
SCR D SCH "Dy
AgEgls
i dssssts 151 422 I T549
Mon-current assgis Y14 647 25965
Lishdlities
Currend linbilities 139,643 130,547
Mon-swrrent lahilities w57 2% 145
Hevenucs 4534 335 806
Prafin before mx 62,113 1% M4B
Cfher comprehimive s i = u
Total comprebensive income 42618 [F 4
Propartion of cwnership inserest and voting rights (Dinect) 6% 2
(i) Sammarised cash G inlirmalos:
50 June 0 Jumie
018 7
sCR t SUH
Dpersting nctivities 1R i, Al
Ivestmenl acivigles (75171} (47,247}
Finescing activitics {25 2000 113 60K
Met chamge in eash and cash equivalents (b, 355 {33,041}

There i ni comtingent liabdlity a3 s the reponing period. Homver, capital commitments reported during the period

I} unted 10 SCR 23.2m.
[ &) Hame Al Salam Bank Sepchidlkes
Principle Activilics Basking Services
iy Summaried cetement of Financial position and stsiement of profit o kes end otber income ag per ungudited Financial
Slaliznenls.
31 December 31 Decembaer

ik T

E1 1] LISIr
ASEELE 41,326,712 155115
Linhiltias 35, E12 406G 28,143 553
Equsity 5. 494,243 3351 502

. 1. 736,000 1 255 B52
Revenues 5
Prodit before tax 198,072 IGE 218
Tax charge 10UBT 7,783
Tiotald comprehensive e oi 1Bl 851 160433
Fropontion of oemership imtenesi and voling rights { Dinect) ElLg b
(il Sumerarised cash flow infonsation:
3 Decemher 31 Dsgembsir

2018 a7

LREAH U=
(hperabing activiliss TAT4.550 £E10,M3
Investment Betivilies 45007 ‘!IE;].EI;:;]
Firaincing activilies o L DOy !
Met change in cash and cash equivalenis R123.557 IE?E!‘I

(i} There is no commitment and contingencics as at the roporting penod
3H
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MINTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMESTS - WVEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 21§

T INVESTMEST 1M FENAMNCLAL ASSETS

113 H-!‘I‘
SCH SCR
Nom-omment b mepts
Fimad depaisits - Amoariized codl A4%,617 343 105 561,118
Ivetsury bords - Amenissd com 93.454.39) 142533 324
Exquiry sevunties - masdatondy at far vakie tkoeph profil of ks 3 T AT 135, 1401 %K)

S T VY A A

Current investacats

Froad depighs - Aaurriisnd cedl 147,618, 7¥3 [EUELERLIE
Tresary Bills - Amortsed co91 73K 914 &
Ticasury borads « Ainerised cos TIE] 21,738 5l

Equity scvuntias - masdatorly ot Gair vakis tkoouph profil or loms:

471231964 SRR S0

I8} Irveesents in fwed deposie represent fom doposits with bembs with inferest mies ringieg Hom 2.25% o L8R Gr USDH scooem (2017 USTI 2%} and
4 9% m T (on kel 2ermency sceoadnt) per anmem (201 T SUE 4 5% 0 8%} with nateity dates from 12 Fohnany 2009 1 24 Apcil 2025

%) Ivestmenis in Treasiy Bonds comprisc bonds with ket riies snging from 5.50% o T.50% per ammen (2007 - 4.90% 12 7.50%) and treasary bl
from 4. 5% b T.30% for 360 dars. 1 05% bo 1 14% Tor 91 days {2007 5 58% w7329 matarily dabes Srom U6 Barsh 2009 10 21 O mber 3034,

ted  Fquity secanitics sompiise hixal meounties lited on the Seychellos stock exclongs, mwgusted Fooign securilies, an exzbsnge mded fund snd @ Maurican
ety pombilie. Hisrarchy of Gor valee levels & datibed ender note £ d)

e ro Erested micemalion seailsble Gor the Tir valie determization of the wquated Eorcign sezeeiien, Sair falr valuss bave been deiemmined lised on The
adusid nal smeets vakie which & o bovel 3 hiaranihy clomfied a5 a8 uschservatile ingod of IFRE D3, The (ulr valop of e unquried aquilies has boes
calzplaed Eor the firs time in B9, The detaib of thiess imtramens ane o milows:

8 El'."
TR CH
M renisibonk 37205, 0T 1,857,830
ke Bank {re- chosified a Asuciaies i Maies 10) x 575,230
FTA Class B Shares Mamzzq ‘?EJ!&EE
182, T2R A 146070035
Thee details of (ke fidr vabe adasments for di dvesiments is mquoisd aquilies ar i Rlloss;
DLE F g
ECH SCH
HAfranin Baik 4004078 -
TIOH Clssn TE sharss SN2 444 -
Eycheliea Comanancial Bank 1§ AH5 =
54 k0012 -
The detiaals af ihe fuir valee sdpsiments for de imvestments in guotad squities an: s foliowa:
LDLE 2017
Exchange Teanded Fumd LI9L3TA -
Mauniias Swck Eechaage FARR L] -
Idu'.r!m =
i Mone aftke firenclal axcts are gillez pagi due or impained.
ted  Imvistmenis in Gnascial ases e depomisin] in e follirwing cesencia:
WLE 20T
SR CR
5!!-!’;\:_"15 Ripee ey 42) 0 SRMLITIEAY
M aiwitse Pupes 1XA1831% 4 510,057
LIS Dol II0ATT 293 150503 380

D, DET AR TN, 545 4B
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12. RECEIVARLES AND PREPAYMENTS

It|§ 207
=CH SCH
it Conirbaticns fece el o membiers h 7.0 410 21145013
Samoual recelvae from e Governme ot of Soyckelles @ HET ] 12, 41425
Irviereat sz ggivahk h Fr4ALHI2 24,704,153
Brial mé o woaivabk d §.RAZ904 p N
Stheance payines on capitil projesis 4.1 Th AL B, 566
Frepaymicils LAl Es 4RE,E2E
ciehizr oo s abies £ N Y|
_JM L ALLAE S
plL] 17
R SCR
i Menind iséome Revivaklc 13854 511 TAILAR)
Provison for tod and doubifil debia (Mme 1) 1L5I-I.'-'I'I'J] {51757
Mot peml receivalide mlﬂd 1.H|el.d-
Thie provvisiun B bid amd doubaful debas Iz as follows: 20 7
SCH R
Opening babwze lanuary | 5 174mT -
b owermani (001128 E1740m
Afpsnel 448.794 -
Clising habance ecember 11 ASELTR §Ilﬂ.l?1‘
{a) The camving smoust of trads and oiles seceivablas ave deneiminoied in Seychelbes papecs ind apgrasimsic thei G vl

&
“Tha cantrbsiisns reseivahk Som members &= conmivotions for Decenbar 201E due on e 11w day of Jamsary 1010 sad ofher corinbelion in svears.

{t] The ameusl peceivahle Baim Govermment of Seychelles repoescnis govemmesl peasion {Spacil Pereion/ Tintillernent and Earky Retiremesi) which the
Frrsd pasicd 1 itz mmbers on Bebal of and efindabis by he Govermimen! of Seycitlls

{d} Rertal neome mocerable sepresenis outvding nonk from KRS af which seound SCR 0.3m was eollected is femuary 309, SCR Im are coaca st the
Renil Becrt) and 50K 160 are jnactive want, suscial s pon-payments of pant

ie) Dribgr roezivabiles comprise of mundny debines. caif lon asd debtars clearing.

[f} A new peliay far Provisian for bod debts wos approvid by the Board in Ramsiey 1009 fie Ergbemerrivtion in H013.. The calculssion Is based as pex IFRS 9
whearchy The gpectd 2redit losses an: determined hased om comunt dala ard atfuiod wwing & mocm-cenanmic [acior, in this ise, the infleio e @ tha
endl af 1018 which wai 3. 7% Poll previskon for bad debits huve baon provided foe otsl devs in excem oF 30 debiors daye Al ROR active Eaan: &3 o
e puliy.

(g The Furd doas net kol ary solbvieral as secunty

I b limieresi pesivable i ludas inberest receheabla Srvin Fiaed Do, Tressrny Bil and Trezsny Bonds.

it RECEIVABLE FROM FEOFERTY MANACEMENT CORPORATHINAIFMC)

2K aniT

SCH SR
haming hakiace
Addivire-Disbumssinem 150 (ML A .
Tatsl reperpmer CLRLGN T 5540 -
Iricrest s abis — -

u&mﬂﬂ -
Camresl 14, TARRLY .
Him-Current _1TTER -

138757 454 -

The mmoent peceivable Fom Goversoes! PML o, szpresmis e kin dishersed i Govemmsent of Sepcheles for housng projecis sreborisken by
Giovarmanesl of Saychelles.

14, CFTHER PAYABLES Hi

b _EBIT

=CR SCR
Hemial deposiis 10,844, %) STIRYTY
Ahanie Ol rem 441108 RI0.455
Hcerasd cxpinsss TORROZT A0T7 284
Chher paryabies b 111,063 54,205
'H-ul.;lllm- Saberizs 3 1,410,168
Retzation prysble - L3761T3

INAAAE4L (RARLET

(1] mmi:g-mmﬂfnﬂrmwm-td:mhﬂ i1 Suppehciles mpers and approximaic (BeiF fur ke,

thi Dinpyuumhﬂwuﬂinscwulhnpmn#il mhms;ﬂlhupmmum—ddnmh:nm hark scemiinis'deials of fhe
peais e e fibrs
L
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15, RETIHEMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONNS
Histiremern bencEi neligations is in wapect of kesggh-of-service campeiation =5 per he Svchalles Eraploymsn Aot 19595 a5 amended
il Aunetnl seeogresed in the stsboment of Snascial posiso:

e L]

SCR SR
Preseid ke of umimded chbigation 6,301,550 4,740

il Moeement in liahdity oo gt i ssteman of Tadeasd posmon

INLE 07

SCR sSCH
AY lamasry DY, 4, 741073 ATEETE
"harge fof the oo 1494514 971 150

) Cegember 11, Ea e TNTET ]

The: reitremnent berefil ohbpation bes act been vaksed by B AChuATY snce the memagement devide thal kead it e vabiad by acmary the impazt & net

matzrial.
Hl#

6 DEFERRED FROPERTY LEASE s HI.

Lot

ﬂn Fosry 11118 7245, 750 T 6T

Aulidstions . =

[t peasl i 2

Al 1] Devember THLE TR, TE ?&m

Amwtia v aml Impair st

A 1 Jasusery J0148 LT BI530G

Chanyge far the year 104,630 106,680

Dispeaal ’

Al 1) Doy 2006 Iil.'ll_.iﬁ- 1,588

Carrving & und

At | danuary 2018 5,851,754 E0614M

A 3] Dhecerbser JULER hw Em

The valise eamabodd land was anginally sccosmiod for & SCR 1, the vakie st which it was trensfemed frum ihe Govemmant of Seychalles. thi valss bas
bewss yestated o Bir vale a1 B time af acquisition in he 2017 comparstves, The leaschol propentics are Providesze Mict Esterprise, Providesey
Wizahmaze, Purt- Obwad Micen Esterprise, Eve Isbnd Evesgein, The Benclit recaived fam Govemimesl @ being ks 50 Incose over dee i of the
undbarbying asscs: () - 95 yeasi)

17, MEMBERS' FLIND

Memiber's fisl represenss the Balance dus 1 membors whe honon contribeied fo the Seyehelles Persion Funad (which akn inchudes G Leyahellea Ponsion
Scheme frem 19%]), This includes mandsiery and vokitsry sonmibutions fram angloyr i eteployes and contriyution fom sell-copleyed with
sczmnalaied interoet aver the peare. The membors fand b used fo finatee pensinh payment on 4 moethly boss s bap sin eefuads fir nomben ol
qualifying for o mowihly pesion. The wial fanda socpmulned unden mefbe fand 5 a5 follows

SCR =R
Mex imeemibars flasd 1520, 0iEATY 1,41 7563, 303
Fends wkcn foam invesmsent roume TELENGNST  MRSEESEA
Wnhers find _EAMTRET] | LS| AR
Thwiis ol miomibers fund arc as folbaes;
Mandsiapy corrhenm 1,68, 141 4970 1432934164
Volistery comnmibuion LR ELE TTEI 975
Inere st on mandslony conTiblisn: U5 MM, relt At TALZTT
Inderest ga vohikary cenbisunnes 11,42 88T ___1hssaT
2,1, THATL 1.6 ST AR
1% OTHER FULN0S T e
wiated
WiE ".Ql?
SCR SCH
Camsibutions from Social Security Dyasion [aote (b bekeeh 532005 145 337, 1F9. | 44
Papireaks oode fof Secial Secenity Fension (5201304, 15 {320,393 204)
Il i
Mok gomtribations fam Seoal Seauriy camied Fewand 1,335 11, 305415
Recaips From Wtk Provident Fuasd o 0B balea) 71,214,378 TLELE TS
ESF lreesiment Fends Eamfomd w SFF B ATEATS A AT RTR
EPF conisibubon from Gov (sone foh Tedie) l].llE.,._'iﬂ -l'l:dﬂ":l.iﬁ?
AL 31 Devember m&w HHE‘J&I

The 2017 fgare for 55F livesment Musds mansferad tm SFF lin ooy sesued o accoand Sor phe nitml e vabee m 200S oF the Tollosng mrepeiics {Le
Clustiar propery, La Digus od, Drios Mall bulding and Oceangaie hoase propeny) e have hoen rassdemsd t0 sther reserves Eom prise year
relaisad vamsig

il
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1.

fal

15,

.

OTHER FUNDS (CONTINUED)

The National Provident Fund Act was repealed and afer refunding the contributions to the persens exditled under the Ast, the balancs
was iransferred to Seychelles Pension Fund as required under Section 73(2) of the Seychiclles Pession Fund Acs, 30015

Valuation of met asscts agninst actoarial vilue af promised reticenient henefies

As per A% 26, the Actnaary conducted a comparison of net assets of SCR 2.832b n it's last Actuarial valuation z= 31 3 181 December
2016 and wctuarial value of necessary retirement benefit of SCR.6.074b required 10 pay all of SPF's members for the period up io
2050, Bince Seychelles Peasion Fund is anly 11 vears odd and currently immmaoure the Acluary las confirmed that urder that under
SPFs "pay #5 you po” schewne (not a Fully Fundsd schemel, it is normal for the Fund's assets to be less than projected benelins
required br pay all current members, provided thad perindic adjustments are made in cortribution males as per Achiary's
recemmendations, aver the meat 15 vears when Seychelles Pension Fund will get 9.5% caontributios fram each of its meinbers by the
year 2035 oo meet 2l benefil chligations. The Actuary has also confirmed the fillenwing;

L. 5PF costisoes o be in & sound firancial position.

Z. As a1 315t December 2006 the level of SPFs to5a] funds represenis |1 times the benefit oukgo eday,

3. Cher the years a3 Seychelles Pension Fund masres 11 is expected w0 become relatively stable especially when the contribuation rate
woulkd have increased to 9.5% of aalaries by the year 2035,

RESERVE FUND
018 1 i
SCR SCR
Rezerve Fumnd 14,568, 290 14508591

The Chief Executive Officer, acting on the advice of the Board of Trustecs, hiks not made iy annual transfer which wp 1o the year
Ik oo the amaowst set aside which was 30% of the difference between the imberest earmed by Seychellss Pension Fund and the
inberest paid ¢ U mernbers, Thic is a continpency fumd det aside which can be wsed 1o meel the cost of pensians or inerest paid L3
memhers |8 the event of & shomfall.

The tramsfer 1o the Reserve Fund was made in crder to increase the disributable reserve

OTHER RESERVES
2018 20T
Revaluation Fair vulue Oiber P ey
CESEIYE FERMrvVe FERATVES FERErve T tnd Tatal
SCR sCR SCR SR ACR SCR
A Jamuary 1, TE 988 411 11395977 55,445 682 - 143, E30,0%0 83,128,314
et changs in fair valus of
associates and subsidianes . - - - - 24 600,001
Net change in FV of
properties - - . 7.752,600 T, 751, i) -
Mt chasgs in fair value of
financial asseis - {192,415 - a (192,415} Elﬂl,iﬁi
At December 3, 70, %8471 10,203,562 55445661 7,752 600 151,390,274 43,830,680
INTEREST INCOME
N8 07
SCH SCR
dnterest income aier the ffective indeeast misthod on;
- Fined depasiis - 81 amarlised cost 15,218 968 17,308,539
- Treasary bosds - at amortised cos) 20,866,925 20, TE] %50
- Bquity securilies 230,957 338,591
- Bank bataness 59, 648 41182
- Btaf¥ |oans 336,110 206,058
- Lo i PMC 7. 360,093 .

Mll.l}l,'.'-iﬁ ﬂlﬂﬂ
4l
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ISVESTRENTY INCOME

[ividends an kecal securities
Dividends on fomeign seaurities

MI1E 017
5CR 5CH
TR 123 5442 0]
AT ] I 4,70, 193
14043439 14,149,064

Dividend meonss is recngnised m the financial statements « ket thle sght w0 Be received & firmly ssinblishad

INTEREST CREDMTED T MEMBE RS

Interest credeied 5o Members' Pund was 2.5% From 0001 2005 o 30,08 2004, From G0, 102018 o 31, 12.20] 8 s per the sew [nierest
Policy approved by the Board. the inberest wad mevised upwards to 4.81% on mandsory contributions and 5,590, on voluntary
corgribtions. The new interest poticy effective 01 ML20E eredits interest b nos-vested members only as they can wsibdraw the
arzounts from their weousnl gince they do nor quealify for o pemsion.  The other vesied members are eligghle for pension and as such do
mirl nieed the itenesn sreited on their mandatory accoants. | Prior policy credited mierest do all membersi. The amount of SCRE 35m

was pald for the vear snded December 31, 2018 (2017; 3.5% - SR 61mi.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXFENSES

Salaries. wages and other related expenses
Salaries and Wages adjusiment-2017
CHfice rueming costs

Nabor vebicles nunning cxponscs

Pastage, pronting and iamanary
Telephone

Ulilities

Repairs and masnienancs

(ither expenses

Demils of other expenses inchudes;

Internet Charges

Femi- Caravelie House
Best- Jupiter House
Cleaming

Medical Board Expenses

International Sociad Sacurity Associacion {155A)

CIEficial mocting expense
Totsl

R staied
2018 27
2R SCR
12257 20k e 6 2, 450
= 1411, 1654
4447210 1,703,742
|77 410,704
| ART 208 114,501
13498123 1 193,505
BH KRG hils 144
ERE T 1.B18 725
g;_?ﬁl,E'!.'i 24510,092

44,466,508 AlL508, 152

2013 2017
SCR SCH
BH, TR 1,019,325
1,702,235 RIS
12,50} =
204,197 435,906
133,248 150,480
: 194,862
28,614 26,006
190l 598 2l 0002

The HHT figure for salaries and wages been restated to account for part of bones snd part of §3th mosth salary for the vear 2017

amuounticg o SCR 1 401,159 which was pald im 21015,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash ar haik
Caslh en hand

I01E 2017

SCR SCR
97554037 220,103,521
43,402 42,073

FTE0T440 ll&lﬁlm
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

201§ 07
Hglances owieg fro et paries: SCR SR
Mer related purfics
Cieommment of Seychellss 307,159 12,361 435
Peceivable from PR o 13K T57.4734
{rareraciions
viends reevid
Opportunity Irvesiment Compasy Limiged S 170 2,193
Seyidelliz Broweres Lmiied [ T 40T S0
Benfal recelved.
Lrevemanent of Saoyvchelles £1257.21% 56,270,858
Loy mawagerind personned
- oss salarees 1555 210 1,747 020
Bogrd of Trmsess’ remunesation jnsle2 B 512, HHI BOE A8

jai  Trsmmactions with related paries are within the normal couse of Busrsss

ikl For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Fund bas not recorded any impaimess of recenables relating o amounts owed by relmed paries
(2017 Wil) This assessmen is aadertaken o the end of each financial year fwrough exasnining the financial posstion of the related party and
the market im whicls g lamer operaies
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SEYCHELLES FENSION FLIND
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 15T DECEMBER 1018
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PRIDOK YEAR RESTATEMENT
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SCH SCR
Within o year 7,186 466 A0 102,539
Adfher one year hut gt more than 5 years 155,047 134,461,539
Micee than 5 years I12,559402 5021913
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Al the end of 2017, SPF cantrocted out the piling works at e ex- Pimies Anms site i Vijay Constnection, However ey in Jonuary
2018, during the piling, Cenmral Bank OF Sevcbelles reported to SPF that their Annex bullding bad sutTinad soone siructural damages
such & foorfwall cracks and bockid doces. An mdependent mvestignion was then camied out by EPF through o geological expen
froms Seanth Afrca who conchded dat the pain casses of the soucural defocis amongst olhers were, 3 weak floating rafit fundation
of e Central Bask OF Sovchelles Annex, pilling method used and weak soil sub sirsta. The meommendstion was o fix it theough
unclerpinming. Cemiral Bank O Sevchelles however enditook o separate study in Jaby 2003 snd their consaliant recommendsd that the
buikling coabd mot ke 100% safe aven il the” underpinming” is done. In Reswary 201%, Central Bank OF Seychelles infransed SPF thal
they expected SPF W pay the sum of SCRIQAm. In Masch 2009 dee details of this costing was sought by SPF and Central Bank O
Sevchelles clanified iha it compnisez of SCR 1m for demodition, SCR 7m for rebudkling dhe annes and SCR 2.3m for elecimical asd
odher filtings. SPF Board nlse duecided w svoke the astiiration classe in the pillmg conesct with the piling contraciar.  The madier is
ixpected B0 b resodved after asbsivetion when o faling woukd be given a2 10 the cmse and responsible party s idennlfiod.

Seychefles Pension Fusd Act 2005 Section (6%) sigles that SPF b5 exempied from stamp duty, business tan, rades 65, goods s
service lax and all other tases, fees, dulics on it ssdels, documents msiruments, profiss, operations snd properties. Thus Seychelles
Pensice Fund strongly believes that il & exeepded from VAT, even i specific exempdion Bas not vet been etached inthe VAT Act The
marter hos besn 1akem =p with the Minsiry of Fenamce throughowt 2008, but as at end of te period this fEeue still prnaing pemding.

Apan fram the above thene wene mo contingent [Blxlites as a1 31 December, 2008,

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING FERIOD

There is no event sabdegquent wo (he date of Agiemens of fivancial positon which may ke o material effec) on the Fnancial Stasemen)
x= wl Dlogember 31, 2018,
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CHAPTER 5 | THE WAY FORWARD

5.1 CONTINUING ON THE PATH TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

It is with much pride that we at SPF, have grown over the past few years to become an established part of the
pension and investment landscape both in Seychelles, and in the international arena with our investments in
Afrexim Bank and TDB Bank.

We now have a culture of continuous improvement at all levels within SPF. This ranges from improved
member services, better out-reach to all our stakeholders, utilization of IT for effective automated processes
and new investment strategy, all aiming towards turning SPF into a sophisticated, efficiently-run organization
that strives to provide valuable protection for its members.

5.2 CHALLENGES AHEAD

5.2.1 Review of Regulations

With the approval and coming into force of the amendments of the SPF Act, the immediate path SPF has to
take is to inform its members on firstly the benefits of the changes, how to effectively access these changes
and to ensure all eligible members actually do take up these new pension services. The next step is for SPF
to do a full review of its Regulations so that it is in line with the amended Act and to have a modern pension
service meeting the needs of our Seychellois workforce.

5.2.2 Investment Income to be the second source of regular income

SPF has two key sources of revenue; contributions from members (employees and employers) and
investment income. The aim in the future is to ensure that SPF continues to have this second source of
stable income from its investments other than pension contributions.

In the past thirteen years of its existence, SPF has by default, invested primarily in the domestic market in
fixed income and real estate, with a strong focus on the development of properties. This is because there
were very limited options in the financial market in the country. Through this strategy, SPF also

contributed towards the country’s economic development by “anchoring” the rental prices in Seychelles,
promoting small businesses and micro enterprises by providing affordable rental spaces, making available
much needed commercial spaces in the capital and thereby changing the ‘face’ of Victoria. In other words,
SPF played a very active role in the financing of long-term, productive activities that support sustainable
growth, such as infrastructure projects in the country.

Traditionally, there has always been a general lack of domestic investment instruments and opportunities to
diversify risks, resulting in a maturity mismatch between SPF's long term liabilities and available short-term
investment instruments. As the only contributory pension system in Seychelles, there is constant pressure for
higher returns to sustain pension commitments, while contributing to the country’s economic development.

In order to inject more diversity in its investment portfolio, SPF is now compelled to embrace more innovative
approach to investments, by gradually increasing its investments in equities and making more of overseas
investments. With 64% of its members being less than 45 years old, SPF can afford to make use of up to 64%
of its surplus funds in long term investments, geared towards technologically and modern investments of
the future, as the liquidity needs arising from its obligation to pay pension benefits will only be a priority after
15 years.

SPF is fairly cash positive, having 43% of its investments in liquid assets, which is more than sufficient to pay
off all benefits along with current contributions each year, for the remaining 32% of its members aged over
45 years.

Chapter 5 | The Way Forward | Page 114



Annual Report 2018

5.2.3 Impact Investments

For investments, the key is to be prudent and diversified with assets split between fixed-income investments
such as Treasury Bills and Bonds, equity investments such as blue-chip dividend stocks/index funds and
commercial real estate. An emerging trend is to place some assets in “impact investments” and to only
make “ethical investments”.

Impact investments are made with the intention to generate a measurable, beneficial social or
environmental impact alongside a financial return and such investments provide capital to address social
and environmental issues. SPF is considering new investments in a renewable energy project, as well as in
housing to provide basic affordable housing to Seychellois professionals, as part of SPF’s impact
investments, although since inception SPF has been making “impact investments”, by providing commercial
spaces for micro-enterprises.

5.2.4 Increasing membership and reviewing contribution rates

SPF currently has around 43,561 active members, a record to date, as membership has gradually increased
over the years. The aim of SPF is to have 100 percent coverage of all Seychellois in employment. SPF will
ensure that measures to expand coverage are reviewed, especially those targeting the self-employed, and
ensure workers are continuously moved from the informal to the formal sector in order to enlarge the con-
tributory base. Specific target groups are looked at each year. For 2018, the target group was artists and for
2019, the target group will be fishermen.

A periodic review of contribution rates is also necessary to consolidate long-term financing. This is done
through long-term actuarial assessments so as to provide a scientific rationale for reviews of contribution
rates. As per the last Actuarial valuation, the next increase in contributions rates is in five years’ time when
contribution rates need to be increased by 2% by 2025. However this is subject to change based on the next
actuarial review expected in 2019.

New measures will also have to be continually introduced to improve compliance and enforce penalties for
the late payment of contributions.

5.2.5 Reducing administrative expenses

Getting the most from our money is a key focus which will be further highlighted in the coming year, as we
note an increase in the cost of administration and oversight. This is mostly due to personnel emolument
costs having increased with more staff and a new scheme of service put in place since 2017. Successful
deployment of strong financial controls and expense management across SPF will be a priority in 2019
along with independent audits to be carried out both in administration and investments.

5.2.6 Efficient and productive workforce

SPF’s aim is to have capable, qualified and knowledgeable workforce, who are always customer focused.
This can only be achieved through intensive training, professional qualifications, international exposure
through workshops and seminars, and building confidence so that all staff acquire and perfect skills with
outstanding attitude and competence. In 2018, 96% of the workforce of SPF benefited with some type of
training, which SPF will continue in the years to come.

5.2.7 Risk management

SPF has a very good understanding of all the risks it faces. Management and Board of Trustees places a lot
of emphasis on making sure such risks are mitigated effectively. There are however risks, not directly within
SPF's control, such as demographic developments in the country, with decreasing birth rates, increasing life
expectancy and longevity.
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Such risks are inevitable in any pension scheme especially one as immature as SPF where it has
contributions built up for only 13 years, with benefits to be paid for all retirees in the future, for a current
membership of 43,561. Since Seychelles has an aging population, pensions in the future would require either,
increases in income through increased contributions or other income or/ and an increase in retirement age
in the future, for the very youngest workers in today's labour market. Since SPF operates a ‘Pay-as-you-go’
scheme, the number of “contributors” in the future, will be less than the pensioners who are increasing and
also living longer.

Money that is paid through contributions are more than sufficient today to fund the retirement benefits, as
there have been surpluses from inception, although the actual surplus has dwindled due to higher pension
payments. This may not be the case in the future.

As long as the contribution rates and retirement age are reviewed as recommended by the Actuary, and there
are surpluses of contributions over pension payments, which has been a significant reason for the growth of
SPF in the last 13 years, the risk of unsustainability can be avoided. There has always been a perception that
SPF may not be able to finance or may not be there for future pension payments. As at 31st December 2018,
total assets of SPF sits at SCR 3,068 billion and is expected to continue to grow from increased contributions
and investment income in the years to come.

Today, more than ever, SPF is in a strong financial position and Seychellois should feel good about SPF being
there when they retire. SPF’s total assets of SCR 3,068 billion, is SCR 241million more than what was project-
ed by the Actuary in 2016, and well into half the total funds required to fund all its members’ pensions, if they
were to turn 60 years today, for which SPF would need SCR 6.074 billion. The Actuary in its 2016 evaluation
confirmed that the early built-up of funds, has made SPF's level of fund to be 11 times the benefit outgo ne
eded in 2016. The actuary, who reviews the health of the SPF every three years, also confirmed that SPF is in
a sound financial position, provided all recommendations of the Actuary are implemented.

5.2.7 Minimum pension

SPF is also working in the immediate future, to see if there can be a minimum pension for workers on lower
incomes, so that they can get a better pension than they are currently getting, which is below the minimum
wage. A minimum pension that would bring it closer to the minimum wage would be worked on in 2019, now
that a maximum pension has been established in 2018.

5.2.8 Strengthening Governance

SPF will be strentghening its governance processes through a series of training, policies and reinforce
proceedures to ensure there is always a 'clean’ source of funds coming into SPF and the risks of financial
crime and money laundering are mitigated.

5.2.9 Conclusion

What is needed in the coming decades is sustained and steady contribution and investment income to pay
the increasing pension payments. The challenge then is to find ways and means of framing long term
financing strategies, securing long term sources of finance and shielding them as effectively as possible
from short term exigencies. The path adopted by SPF is thus clear to all. Our goal is to ensure the future
sustainability of SPF, thereby reinforcing abilities to pay its members an entitlement which better reflects the
current economic and social situation of the country.
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Pension system in Seychelles
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Being self-employed,
shouldn't you start securing
your retirement

today?

Tomorrow?

TOO late?

sometimes we start
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